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1. General Information regarding the Department
The Department of Higher Education and Training

PRETORIA OFFICE

Postal Address:

Private Bag X174

Pretoria

0001

Physical Address:

117 - 123 Francis Baard Street

Pretoria

0002

Tel: 012 312 5911

Fax: 012 323 0291

CAPE TOWN OFFICE

Postal Address:

Private Bag X9192

8000

Physical Address:

103 Plein Street

8001

Tel: 021 469 5175

Fax: 021 461 4761

OTHER USEFUL CONTACTS
Career advice helpline: 0860 111 673

Website: 

National fraud hotline: 0800 801 801

Departmental Call Centre  (Toll free): 0800 872 222

Website
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2. List of Abbreviations/Acronyms

ABET Adult Basic Education and Training

ADEA Association for the Development of Education in Africa

ADTTT Artisan Development Technical Task Team

AET Adult Education and Training

AGSA Auditor-General South Africa

ALCs Adult Learning Centres

ARPL Artisan Recognition of Prior Learning

AU African Union

BAS Basic Accounting System

BNC Bi-National Commission

BRICS

CAO

CACH Central Applications Clearing House

CAS Career Advice Services

CC Closed Corporation

CD Chief Director

CEM Council of Education Ministers

CEO

CEPD Centre for Education Policy Development

CESM

CET Community Education and Training

CETA Construction Education and Training Authority

CFO

CHE Council on Higher Education

COL

COMEDAF Conference of Ministers of Education of the African Union

COSE Collaboration for Occupational Skills Excellence

CPIX Consumer Price Index

CPUT Cape Peninsula University of Technology

CSIR

CUT Central University of Technology

DBE Department of Basic Education

DDG Deputy Director-General

DG Director-General

DHET Department of Higher Education and Training

DIRCO Department of International Relations and Cooperation

DOE Department of Education
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DOL Department of Labour

DST Department of Science and Technology

DTI Department of Trade and Industry

ECM Enterprise Content Management

EEP Employment Equity Plan

EFA Education for All

ELRC Education Labour Relations Council

ENE Estimates of National Expenditure

ETQA Education and Training Quality Assurance

EXCO Executive Council

FET Further Education and Training

FETCBU Further Education and Training Colleges Bargaining Unit

FETMIS Further Education and Training Management Information System

FMS&G Financial Management Systems and Guidelines

GENFETQA General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance 

GETC

GFETQSF

GIS Geographical Information System

GITO

GPSSBC General Public Service Sector Bargaining Council

HE Higher Education

HEAIDS Higher Education HIV/AIDS

HEDCOM Heads of Education Departments Committee

HEI Higher Education Institutions

HEMIS Higher Education Management Information System

HEQF

HESA Higher Education South Africa

HIV/AIDS

HRD Human Resource Development

HRDSA Human Resource Development Strategy for South Africa

HRMIS Human Resource Management Information System

IBSA

ICASS Internal Continuous Assessment

ICT Information and Communication Technology

ILO International Labour Organisation

IT Information Technology

ITIL Information Technology Infrastructure Library

INDLELA Institute for the National Development of Learnerships, Employment Skills and Labour 
Assessments
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IPAP Industrial Policy Action Plan

LAN

MEDUNSA Medical University of South Africa

MIS Management Information System

MLO

MMM

MPAT Management Performance Assessment Tool

MTEF

MTSF

NAMB National Artisan Moderation Body

NASCA

NATED National Accredited Technical Diploma

NC(V)

NDP National Development Plan

NGP

NIHE National Institute of Higher Education 

NIPF

NQF

NRF National Research Foundation

NSA National Skills Authority

NSDS National Skills Development Strategy

NSDSIII National Skills Development Strategy III

NSF National Skills Fund

NSF ALC National Norms and Standards for Funding Adult Learning Centres

NSF DIS National Skills Fund Disbursement Information System

NSF FET National Norms and Standards for Funding Further Education and Training Colleges

NSFAS National Student Financial Aid Scheme

OAG

ODA Overseas Development Assistance

OECD Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development

OFO

OQSF

PALC Public Adult Learning Centre

PED Provincial Education Department

PERSAL Personnel Salary System

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PICC Presidential Infrastructure Coordinating Commission

PIVOTAL Professional, Vocational, Technical and Academic Learning

PME Performance Management and Evaluation
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PQM

PSIRA Private Security Industry Regulation Act

PSETA Public Service SETA

QCTO Quality Council for Trades and Occupations

RDG Research Development Grant

SADC Southern African Development Community

SAICA South African Institute of Chartered Accountants

SAIDE South African Institute of Distance Education

SAQA

SARS South African Revenue Service

SAUS South African Union of Students

SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts

SDA Skills Development Act

SDLA Skills Development Levies Act

SDL Skills Development Levy

SET Science, Engineering and Technology

SETA Sector Education and Training Authority

SIC

SIP

SITA State Information Technology Agency

SSP Sector Skills Plan

SPU

SRC Student Representative Council

SSS Student Support Services

TDG Teaching Development Grant

TWG Technical Working Group

UCCF University Council Chairs Forum

UMP University of Mpumalanga

UN United Nations

UNESCO

UoT University of Technology

VCET Vocational and Continuing Education and Training

WAN

WITS

WSU Walter Sisulu University 
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3. Message from the Minister
It is a pleasure to present the fourth Annual Report of the Department of Higher Education and Training, namely 

January 2014 marked the launch of the White Paper for Post-School Education and Training. The White Paper 
aims to improve the capacity of the post-school education and training system and outlines policy directions to 
develop the country and improve the economic, social and cultural life of its people. Amongst others, the White 
Paper aims at strengthening and expanding the Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) Colleges 

Adult Learning Centres.

Portal has been develop as an integrated education and training career development information system and is 

into this Portal.

of January to the end of March 2014. This is an important initiative to guide and advise prospective students on 

directives of the National Development Plan. These include among other things:

The publication of the Policy for the Provision of Distance Education in South African Universities in the 
Context of an Integrated Post-school System. The policy provides for contact universities to embark on 

expansion of the system, especially at the post-graduate level.
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Development Council, the Policy for a Generic National Artisan Learner Grant Funding and Administration 

The National Student Financial Aid Scheme continues to play a critical role in administering loans and bursaries 

centered model to assess the success thereof and to ensure that there is a good return on our investment in this 
respect.

global and local donors for their ongoing support.

I hereby present this Annual Report of the Department of Higher Education and Training to Parliament. 

Together, Turning Every Workplace into a Training Space!

Dr BE Nzimande, MP
Minister of Higher Education and Training
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4. Message from the Deputy Minister

Apply Now! 

Year of the Artisan

Decade of the Artisan
primarily at advocating the need for young people to consider technical and vocational programmes at TVET 
Colleges, and artisan development in particular as a career of choice as opposed to only a University based 

The extension of the Higher Education and Training AIDS (HEAIDS) programme to TVET Colleges during the 

programme has laid the foundation for further roll out to reach all post-school education and training students.

and to congratulate them on the goals achieved during the past year.

Mr MC Manana, MP
Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training
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for their continued support to improve the provisioning of post-school education and training opportunities, 

achieving our goals given the many challenges still being faced.

outlines key principles such as the strengthening and expansion of the Technical and Vocational Education 

Concept 
Framework for an Open Learning System in Post-School Education and Training in South Africa

developed. Regulations on the Assessment Process and Procedures for Adult Education and Training National 

of South Africa in the 2014 BRICS Think Tanks Council and 2014 BRICS Academic Forum. During the year under 

to interrogate the draft BRICS vision document and develop it further into a South African position document.
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GF Qonde
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the Annual Report 

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the Annual Report, are consistent.

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

by National Treasury.

has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance 

Yours faithfully

GF Qonde

Date: 30 May 2014
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7.1 Vision

7.2 Mission

system, its sub-systems and its institutions.

7.3 Value statement

The Department is committed to

honesty, perseverance and commitment in providing differentiated education and training opportunities 
for all the people of South Africa

achieve the shared goals

transformation imperatives by addressing and normalising social inequality, race, gender, age, geography, 
HIV/AIDS and disability issues at all our higher education and training institutions.

7.4 Strategic outcome-orientated goals

7.4.1 Strategic Goal 1: To increase the number of skilled youth by expanding access to education and training.

7.4.2 Strategic Goal 2: To adequately capacitate individual institutions to effectively provide or facilitate all 
learning.

7.4.3 Strategic Goal 3: To increase the number of students successfully entering the labour market upon 
completion of training.

7.4.4 Strategic Goal 4:
and social development.

7.4.5 Strategic Goal 5: To create college curriculums that are responsive to the demands of the market place 

special emphasis on artisan training.



DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

18

7.4.6 Strategic Goal 6: To create credible institutional mechanisms for skills planning to support an inclusive 

7.4.7 Strategic Goal 7: 
corporate governance practices.
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8. Legislative and other mandates

Constitutional mandate

excluding tertiary education as a functional area of concurrent national and provincial legislative competence, 

(a) to a basic education, including adult basic education 

available and accessible.

implementation of this right, the state must consider all reasonable educational alternatives, including 
single medium institutions, taking into account

(a) equity

(b) practicability and

that

(a) do not discriminate on the basis of race

(c) maintain standards that are not inferior to standards at comparable public educational institutions.
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Legislative Mandates

Legislation Principal Minister Relevant to the Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Adult Education and Training Act 
(AET Act)

Provides for the establishment of 
public and private adult learning 
centres and for the governance of 
public centres

Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Entire Act

Further Education and Training Act 
(FET Act)

Provides for the governance and 
funding of FET colleges and related 
matters in providing FET college 
education

Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Entire Act

General and  Further Education 
and  Training Act (GENFETQA) – 
UMALUSI is the Quality Council for 
FET colleges and AET centres

Whole to Minister of 
Basic Education – 
except areas relevant 
to the Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

In as far as public and private centres 
offering AET as per the AET Act, 
offering further education as per the 
FET Act and section 2(b) & (c), 3,16-
21, 23, 26 and 28

Higher Education Act (HE Act)

planned system of higher education 
and for the statutory Council on Higher 
Education (CHE) 

Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Entire Act

National Student Financial Aid 
Scheme Act (NSFAS Act)

Provides for the granting of loans 
and bursaries to eligible students 

administration of such loans and 
bursaries

Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Entire Act

Act (NQF Act)

Provides for managing the NQF level 
dispensations and related matters, as 

Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Entire Act

Provides for the imposition of skills 
development levies and related 
matters

Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Entire Act
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Legislation Principal Minister Relevant to the Minister of Higher 
Education and Training

Provides for the creation of the 
National Skills Agency, establishment 
of the Quality Council for Trade 
and Occupation, regulation of 
apprenticeships and learnerships and 
matters related to skills development

Minister of Higher 
Education and Training Minister of Labour: Section 2(1) g 

& h, 2(2)(a)(v), (vi) & (xii),5(4) (only 

of SA), 22(1), 23(1)(a) & (d), 
(2),(3),24,25,26,26K, 26L, 26M, 
26N, 32(2), 36(o), (p)&(q), item 
7 of Schedule 2A & Schedule 4; 
and  Section 32(1), 33 and 36(a) & 
(s) and any other provision to the 
extent that these provisions apply to 

Section 1, or Productivity South Africa, 
as established by Section 26K, but 
excluding Section 23(1)(b) & (c)
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Policy Mandates

Sole legislation:

1. 

Act and Education White Paper 3: A Programme for the Transformation of Higher Education (1999), formed 

Plan for Higher Education (2001).

2. The National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS) Act, 1999 (Act No. 56 of 1999), provides for the 

as for the administration of such loans and bursaries.

3. The Adult Education and Training (AET) Act, 2000 (Act No. 52 of 2000), provides for the establishment of 

quality assurance mechanisms for the sector.

4. The Further Education and Training (FET) Colleges Act, 2006 (Act No. 16 of 2006), provides for the 
regulation of further education and training, the establishment of governance bodies and the funding 
of public FET colleges, the registration of private FET colleges and the promotion of quality in further 
education and training.

5. 

6. The Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999), provides for the imposition of the skills 
development levy and connected matters.

The administration powers and functions originally entrusted to the Minister of Labour by the Skills 
Development Levies Act and the Skills Development Act, with the exception of provisions dealing with 
Productivity South Africa and employment services, were transferred to the Minister of Higher Education 
and Training, effective from 1 November 2009, by way of Presidential Proclamation 56 of 2009.

Shared legislation:

7. 

by means of a skills development levy and the National Skills Fund.

8. 
functions pertaining to the determination of policy for public and private centres, established as envisaged 
in the Adult Education and Training Act, 2000: This includes public and private colleges providing further 
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education as envisaged in the FETC Act, 2006, transferred to the Minister of Higher Education and 

authorities.  It laid the foundation for the establishment of the Council of Education Ministers (CEM), as 

policies in general and for further education and training, for curriculum assessment and language policy 

on in Schedule 3 of the Constitution.

9. 
functions pertaining to adult education centres; the South African Council for Educators Act, 2000 (Act No. 

for Educators and to adult learning centres.  The General and Further Education and Training Quality 

Umalusi in relation to public and private centres offering adult education and training as envisaged in the 

Minister of Higher Education and Training.

10. In the interim, the applicable provisions of the National Education Policy Act, the Employment of Educators 
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10. Entities reporting to the Minister

Name of entity Legislation Financial 
Relationship

Nature of Business

Agriculture Sector 
Education and Training 
Authority (AGRISETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in both 
primary and secondary agriculture sectors

Banking Sector 
Education and Training 
Authority (BANKSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 

Construction Sector 
Education and Training 
Authority (CETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
construction industry

Council on Higher 
Education (CHE)

Higher 
Education Act 
101 of 1997

Transfer 
payments

Advising the Minister of Higher Education 
and Training on all higher education policy 
matters, implementation of the system of 
quality assurance for higher education, 
monitoring the state of the higher education 
system and contribution to the development 
of higher education through intellectual 
engagement

Chemical Industries 
Education and Training 
Authority (CHIETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
chemical industries sector

Culture, Arts, Tourism, 
Hospitality and 
Sport Education and 
Training Authority 
(CATHSSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the  
arts, culture, tourism, hospitality and sport 
sectors

Energy and Water 
Sector Education and 
Training Authority 
(EWSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development  in the 

Education, Training 
and Development 
Practices (ETDPSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
education, training and development sector

Fibre Processing and 
Manufacturing Sector 
Education and Training 
Authority (FP&MSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Facilitate, coordinate and monitor the 

processing and manufacturing sector
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Name of entity Legislation Financial 
Relationship

Nature of Business

Financial and 
Accounting Services 
Sector Education and 
Training Authority 
(FASSET)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 

Food and Beverages 
Sector Education and 
Training Authority 
(FOODBEV)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
food and beverage sector

Health and Welfare  
Sector Education and 
Training Authority 
(HWSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 

Insurance Sector 
Education and Training 
Authority (INSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development  in the 
insurance sector 

Local Government  
Sector Education and 
Training Authority 
(LGSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
local government sector 

Manufacturing, 
Engineering and 
Related Services 
Sector Education and 
Training Authority 
(MERSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
manufacturing, engineering and related 
services sector 

Media, Information  
and Communication 
Technologies SETA 
(MICTS)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in 
the information system, electronics and 
telecommunications technologies sector 

Authority (MQA)
Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
mining and minerals sector 

National Skills Funds 
(NSF)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

To fund national skills development priority 

to achieving the purpose of the Act as 
determined by the Accounting Authority
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Name of entity Legislation Financial 
Relationship

Nature of Business

National Student 
Financial Aid Scheme 
(NSFAS)

NSFAS Act 56 
of 1999

Transfer 
payments

Responsible for administering and allocating 
loans and bursaries to eligible students, 
developing criteria and conditions for the 
granting of loans and bursaries to eligible 

Higher Education and Training, raising funds, 
recovering loans, maintaining and analysing 
a database, undertaking research for the 

advising the Minister on matters relating to 

Public Service Sector 
Education and Training 
Authority (PSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
public service sector

Quality Council 
for Trades and  
Occupations (QCTO)

NQF Act 2008 
and Skills 
Development 
Act of 2008

Transfer 
payments

Agency services 
provided

Develop criteria to ensure the quality 

are responsive to labour market and 
developmental state initiatives.

Safety and Security 
Education and Training 
Authority (SASSETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development  in the 
safety and security sector 

Services Sector 
Education and Training 
Authority (SERVICES 
SETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
services sector 

South African 

(SAQA)

SAQA Act 58 of 
1995

Transfer 
payments

SAQA focuses on upholding the principles of 

ensuring access, quality, redress and 
development for all learners, through an 

achievements

Transport Education 
and Training Authority 
(TETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
transport sector 

Wholesale and Retail  
Sector Education and 
Training Authority 
(W&R SETA)

Skills 
Development 
Act 97 of 1998

Transfer 
payments

Provision of relevant, quality and accessible 
education, training and development in the 
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General in Part E: Financial Information.

2.1 Service delivery environment

Introduction

and Monitoring Coordination; Programme 3: University Education; Programme 4: Vocational and Continuing 
Education and Training and Programme 5: Skills Development.

University Sector

An overview of the service delivery environment during the past year

The total student headcount enrolment at the 23 established universities reached 953 373 in the 2012 academic 

the National Development Plan (NDP) and the recently published White Paper for Post-School Education and 

from 145 426 in the 2009 academic year to 165 995 in the 2012 academic year. Notably, the number of Research 

it is on post-graduates that the country depends for our future academics, researchers and other leaders in 

 
1 380 PhD graduates to 1 879 over the same period. 

This achievement has changed the shape of the university education system from 23 to 25 universities, 11 

contribute to the increased capacity for contact students in the system. 
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of the health and allied sciences education. The Joint Task Team appointed to advise the Minister on the 
separation of the MEDUNSA

MEDUNSA campus by January 2015.

the publication of the Policy for the Provision of Distance Education in South African Universities in the Context of 
an Integrated Post-school System

be used to develop a 20-year infrastructure development and maintenance plan for the system and to guide 

infrastructure funding cycle. 

spatial development programmes and academic expansion plans. During the latter part of 2013, the infrastructure 
programme focused on the renovation and refurbishment of existing infrastructure at each campus to support 

before being published for public comment and submitted to the Council on Higher Education (CHE) for advice, 
as required by the Higher Education Act of 1997 (as amended).

Teacher Education and Development (2011), is continuing. Nine Provincial Teacher Education and Development 
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A policy statement on the management and use of the teaching development grant over the 2014/15-2016/17 

focus on teaching competence, implementation of effective tutorship and mentorship programmes and promoting 
the study of teaching and learning at universities.

The expansion of funding assistance to students at FET colleges and universities via the National Student 

students has put considerable strain on the system. 

aspects of the enrolment planning process to ensure improved integrated planning for a diverse and differentiated 

planning, research development, teaching development, staff development and realistic expansion possibilities 

University of Mpumalanga in Mpumalanga Province. 

The establishment of the National Institute for Humanities and Social Sciences (NIHSS).

Ministerial Statement on Enrolment Planning (2014/15 to 2019/20).

MEDUNSA Campus of the University of Limpopo.

development plans focused on improving student success and university teaching. 
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of The Strengthening Foundation Phase Teacher Education Programme and highlighted the outstanding 
achievements of this programme.

Three include:

The publication of the White Paper on Post-school Education and Training, published in January 2014. The 

and expanded post-school education and training system. This sets the scene for the development of a 
National Plan for Higher 

Education

Cabinet approved a Joint Technical Task Team comprising of the Departments of Agriculture, Forestry 
and Fisheries and the Department of Higher Education and Training, to be established to develop 
mechanisms and plans for the transfer of agricultural colleges from the Departments of Agriculture, 
Forestry and Fisheries to the Department of Higher Education and Training.

The Minister approved the Ministerial Report on the Funding of Universities and established a Technical 

public comment.

make recommendations on a model and funding for a permanent South African BRICS Think Tank that 

participation in the BRICS Academic Forums in the future.

Service Programme for all university graduates in the future.

Challenges that might have impacted on the performance of the Department in the 
implementation of the strategic plan and annual performance plan.

External consultation processes required in terms of the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act (PAJA) and the 

Education (CHE), in terms of the Higher Education Act of 1997, as amended.

available for all sections to carry out their monitoring and evaluation functions. In particular this had the effect of 
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needy but academically capable university students, can be supported through loans. While substantial additional 

these amounts effectively before the end of the 2013 academic year. The late allocation of these funds had a 

by the state. 

A further issue is the human resource capacity constraints. The University Education Branch experienced severe 

attention. Four vacant funded posts, including the post of Chief Director: Financial Planning and Information 

on the targeted number of African students in the Higher Education system as stated in the APP.

Vocational and Continuing Education and Training

The Vocational and Continuing Education and Training Branch undertook various activities to:

ensure continued relevance of vocational education and training programmes offered at Technical 

expand the institutional base for the provision of quality post-school education and training through 
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increase access to programmes leading to intermediate and high-level learning through the establishment 

guidelines and regulations

in vocational programmes by initiating and supporting interventions such as providing training and support 
to lecturers and student support services managers

improve participation in vocational education and training for poor students by increasing the number of 
FET students bursary recipients in colleges

process the migrating TVET and detectors from a provincial to a national competence

entry and exit. TVET colleges and community colleges (planned for establishment) are central to the realisation 
of this vision. 

college sector, revitalising of TVET colleges infrastructure, improving the quality of learning programmes offered 
and provisioning of bursaries for TVET college students. 

In expanding the post-school provision to improve access, the student enrolment at FET and AET has 

 - support regarding TVET colleges human resource management aspects

 -

 -
Cape and Limpopo Province. 
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Substantive actions that are currently implemented in TVET colleges in pursuit of improved student 

 -

 - the administration of the student selection and placement test at the commencement of the academic 
year to, among other things, identify student numeracy and literacy gaps and to advise on the most 

 - the introduction and implementation of the Attendance and Punctuality Policy for students

 -
learning areas such as Mathematics and Mathematical Literacy; focused content training for 

 -

 - training and capacity development for support of SSS managers on the various elements of the 

strategic planning in support of SSS. 

for multiple points of entry and exit.

Challenges that might have impacted on the performance of the Department in the 
implementation of the Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan.

areas include:

Cancelations of registration and removal of names of defaulting colleges from the Register of private 

private TVET colleges responding to an annual survey conducted by the Department
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An overview of the service delivery environment during the past year

on 3 December 2012. The changes in SETA funding regulations came into effect on 1 April 2013. The regulations 

as per the Skills Development Act.

The Ministerial Task Team (MTT) concluded and published its report on SETA performance in August 2013. 

recommend assistance to ensure that SETA performance in short, medium and long term planning is improved.

artisanship such that it is universally recognised as a career choice for the South African youth, particularly 
those in the post-school education and training system and reinforce appreciation for artisan skills development 
opportunities that are available. 

The Skills Branch, through the National Skills Authority (NSA), consolidated and developed a NSDS III progress 

experienced. The report also began to identify crucial factors to be considered for the development of a future 

development. 

 

artisans (against a target of 12 000).

of artisans and many more.
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Challenges that might have impacted on the performance of the Department in the 
implementation of the Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan.

Trade and Occupations. Furthermore, the regulations are aimed at improving access to quality trade testing in 

There is also unavailability of funds for repair, recapitalisation and maintenance of the trade testing facilities at 

cost R29 million. 

The unavailability of funds to convert posts that are currently funded by the National Skills Funds, to permanent 
fund posts for the various contract staff that currently run the various units linked to national artisan development 
inclusive of NAMB and Artisan RPL systems and processes, remains a problem. 

collection of data for the NSDS reporting requirements.

training, trade unions, business, community, government departments, and international partners. Exhibitions to 

of learners.  

circulated to enhance the stakeholder participation and to strengthen the provincial roll-out of skills development 
interventions.

Service Delivery Improvement Plan

looking for information about any government department or service. Any collateral material and information 

recourse they have if they receive unsatisfactory service. 
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access points.

regarding departmental services.

2.2 Organisational environment 

the capacity of the unit.

responded smoothly and satisfactorily during 2013/14. The resolution rate for calls received during the period 

better understanding regarding the Department, its institutions and its key programmes. 

Occupational Health and Safety Committee. The biometric access control system has been re-installed and is fully 

and Safety Act in February 2014.

to Higher Education Institutions. Austerity measures implemented by the Department assisted in avoiding any 
unauthorised expenditure. Savings on direct charges resulted from levies not received based on the estimates 
received from National Treasury.
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2.3 Key policy development and legislative changes

2.3.1 Further Education and Training Colleges Amendment Act, 2013 (Act No. 1 of 
2013)

This legislation aims to amend the Further Education and Training Colleges Act, 2006, so as to clarify certain 

Institute for Vocational and Continuing Education and Training; to provide for the composition, functions and 
functioning of the Institute; to provide for transitional arrangements, to repeal the Adult Education and Training 

2.3.2 White Paper for Post-School Education and Training

In order to confront our developmental challenges, South Africa needs a single, coherent, differentiated, highly 

last quarter of 2013/14 the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) published the White Paper for 
Post-School Education and Training.

entire post-schooling sector, improving the capacity of the post-school education and training system to meet the 

3. Strategic outcome-orientated goals

Outcome 5: ‘A 
. In the quest to deliver on this mandate, 

Expand access to education and training for the youth.

Capacitate educational institutions for effective provision or facilitation of learning.

Increase the number of students successfully entering the labour market upon completion of training.

Ensure a college curriculum that is responsive to the demands of the market place and can transform and 
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27 346 graduates received Work Integrated Learning in 2013.

The service delivery targets for Outcome 5 relate to increasing access to programmes leading to intermediate 
and high level learning, increasing access to occupationally directed programmes in needed areas (thereby 

 Information Framework on Education Information Policy for providing information on current skills 
provisioning and attainment

 Career Advice Framework for cooperation on the provision of career guidance and information services 
in the country

 Framework for Cooperation on the Provision of Career Guidance and Information Services in the country.

The Department conducted a survey of government initiatives in Career Development Services
and duplication in services.  Departments in the Social Cluster, SETAs and the broader stakeholders represented 

Career Development Services and endorsed the development of a Career Development Services Policy across 
all spheres of Government. 

development.  
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The Management Information System Interface

The Comprehensive Career Guidance and Career Information Dissemination and Collection System is fully 

submitted to the DHET. A survey on career development activities in government departments, organisations and 
institutions took place to identify gaps and duplication and recommendations have been implemented.

Business Intelligence Information System 
that interfaces all sources of information relating to the stock, supply and demand of skills, is fully operational.

Output 5.2: Increase access to programmes leading to intermediate and high-level 
learning

 

not have control over the budget that should support expansion in this area, as this is still a provincially funded 
function.

2013 provisional academic performance report indicates that NC(V) Levels 2, 3 and 4 candidates achieved the 

already exceeds the 2014 target by 35 562 students.

Output 5.3: Increase access to occupational directed programmes in needed areas 

A national artisan career guidance and management system has been implemented. To date, all 125 trades have 
 

3 February 2014.

the placement of graduates from the Universities of Technology and Further Education and Training Colleges, 

A total of 22 911 learners have entered learnerships on NQF Level 5 and above, thereby surpassing the 20 000 

individuals completed internships compared to the targeted 20 000. The number of unemployed individuals 
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NQF levels of programmes.

Output 5.4: Access to high level occupationally-directed programmes in needed areas

recorded against the target of  10 673.

Infrastructure allocation to universities represented an increase from R474 million in 2010/11 - 2011/12 to 

of engineering, health and teacher education. A draft report on the establishment of teaching schools to support 

in March 2014.

4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME
Programme 1: Administration

The purpose of the programme is to provide overall management and administration of the Department.

There are four budget sub-programmes:

Ministry

Department Management

Corporate Services

Strategic objectives
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Ensure adherence to policies and standards on logistical services.

Provide effective communication services and events management.

Ensure a safe and healthy physical environment.

Prevent fraud and corruption.

the Department and its public entities.

the DG. These lead to the establishment of the ICT Governance structures in the Department.

services.   

the capacity of the unit.

 

 
.

increased in number and both quantity and quality of information made available to learners and stakeholders 

Occupational Health and Safety Committee. The biometric access control system has been re-installed and is 

Changes to performance indicators during the year

Time-bound).
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The Department is reporting a deviation from planned targets in as far as the PMDS policy is concerned.  

direct reports, accountable for ensuring that the planning and assessment timelines issued by HR are 

Managing certain key areas like payments of invoices from service providers especially in Supply Chain 

SUB-
PROGRAMME

2013/14 2012/13

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Ministry 29 753 29 733 20 29 701 29 635 66

Department 
Management

35 643 35 570 73 30 371 30 241 130

Corporate 
Services

105 167 104 579 588 92 180 91 883 297

Accommodation
33 166 33 162 4 19 899 19 896 3

Total 203 729 203 044 685 172 151 171 655 496

Programme 2: Human resource development, planning and monitoring coordination

The purpose of the programme is to provide strategic direction in the development, implementation and monitoring 
of Departmental policies and the Human Resource Development Strategy for South Africa.

There are six budget sub-programmes:

Programme Management

Human Resource Development, Strategic Planning and Coordination

Planning, Information, Monitoring and Evaluation Coordination

International Relations

Legal and Legislative Services

Social Inclusion in Education
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Strategic Objectives

Establish and maintain an integrated education and training management information system, linking all 
providers of education and training into a single system, to provide accurate data on skills supply and 
demand in the country.

Establish and maintain a coherent career management and career information system by 2014.

Promote research and innovation in the Higher Education and Training Sector by publishing an annual 

Manage and maintain a credible planning and budgeting process for the Department annually.

Maintain a database of international engagements of all public post-school institutions and publish an 
annual report on international collaborations.

Support, advise and monitor the implementation of the post-school education and training system 

entities.

management information system including 50 Further Education and Training Colleges, 23 Higher Education 
Institutions and 21 SETAs.

The standard of publication of post-school education and training statistical reports has been developed and 

the rules for the publication of statistical reports on the post-school education and training sector to ensure the 
quality of the publication.

The Data Dissemination Standard has been drafted and presented to the Higher Education and Training 
Information Standards Committee on 6 March 2014. The Committee has approved and recommended the 
standard to be published. The standard has been routed to the Minister for approval.

The concept paper for the online Work Integrated Learning (WIL) system has been developed. The purpose 

employers; and provide information regarding WIL for reporting purposes. The concept paper has been consulted 

Deputy Director-General (DDG) forum and the Department of Higher Education and Training Data Manager 
Forum. The concept paper has been routed to the Director-General for approval.

of a Career Development Service policy, implementation strategy and consultation process across all spheres of 
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government. Cabinet approved the development of a Career Development Services policy and implementation 
plan in January 2014.

Career Development stakeholders have been collaborating under the coordination of the Department.  An Interim 
National Career Development Forum, represented by various government departments, agencies, entities, 

and coordination.

The National Career Advice Portal (NCAP) has been developed as an integrated education and training career 

TVET Colleges and Universities). 

mobi-site).

development of open learning in the post-school education and training system.  

White Paper has resulted in the involvement of the Research Directorate in its advocacy and an examination of 

The programme is also responsible for the coordination of strategic planning and reporting and ensures a credible 

The annual production of four quarterly performance progress reports on the implementation of the Strategic Plan 

through the NRF under the IBSA Academic Mobility Fund.
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UNESCO Member States on the Post-Shanghai Technical and Vocational Education and Training Conference 

The Minister led a delegation to the International Labour Organisation (ILO) Conference in Geneva in June 

delegation visited Turin in November 2013 to explore the possibility of establishing an ILO training centre at an 
institution in South Africa.

The Deputy Minister led the DHET delegation to the Southern African Development Community (SADC) Meeting 

discussed the progress report on the implementation of the SADC Protocol on Education and Training amongst 
other matters.

The Minister participated in a meeting of OECD Ministers of Education in Istanbul, Turkey in October 2013. 

training system. 

The Minister attended the World Education Forum in the United Kingdom in January 2014.

The Department hosted three delegations on familiarisation visits from counterpart Ministries in Uganda, Burundi 
and Iraq, to identify possible areas of cooperation and to facilitate institutional collaboration. The Department also 

areas for cooperation. 

Committee. The Department facilitated the uptake of scholarships offered to the DHET as part of government 
to government cooperation including scholarships to study in Mauritius, Singapore, Poland, Russia, China and 
Mexico.

The Deputy Minister represented the Department at the SA/EU Summit held in Pretoria in July 2013 and the 

internationalisation in education held on the margins. 

Agency (GIZ) in October 2013.

The revision of the electronic data capturing system for the database of international engagements of institutions 

2014.
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General is required to act.

Trade Test Regulations.

to the DG.

Oversight Committee on Transformation to submit inputs on the policy as directed by the Minister. 

Changes to performance indicators during the year

Time-bound).
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The reports on the investment report on education and training: The draft investment report on education 

Data collection and storage instrument regarding international engagements of all post-school institutions 

A monitoring and evaluation report on the mandatory role of the Quality Councils and SAQA compiled 

may

SUB-PROGRAMME 2013/14 2012/13

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Programme 
Management: Human 
Resource Development, 
Planning and Monitoring 
Coordination

3 674 3 656 18 4 067 4 024 43

Human Resource 
Development, 
Strategic Planning and 
Coordination

11 259 11 198 61 9 247 9 127 120

Planning, Information, 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation Condition 

7 486  7 419 67 6 630 6 511 119

International Relations 10 347 10 268 79 10 954 10 852 102

Legal and Legislative 
Services 

7 226 7 183 43 7 174 7 142 32

Social Inclusion in Higher 
Education and Training 

3 835 3 811 24 5 173 5 173 -

Total 43 827 43 535 292 43 245 42 829 416
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Programme 3: University Education

Aid Scheme and the National Institutes for Higher Education.

There are six budget sub-programmes:

Programme Management

University - Academic Planning and Management Support

University - Financial Planning and Information Systems

University - Policy and Development

Teacher Education

University Subsidies.

Strategic Objectives

Improve success rates in Higher Education studies at public institutions and therefore increase graduate 
outputs by 2014.

Monitor good governance and management of the Higher Education system in order to build capacity 

Develop and enhance the research capacity and productivity of universities.

Maintain and enhance the Higher Education Management Information System (HEMIS).

an event in Kimberly on 19 September 2013 and the UMP at an event in Mbombela on 30 October 2013. Both 
universities appointed interim management teams and academic staff to enable their successful start-up in the 

ready for use by January 2016.
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The Minister established a National Institute for the Humanities and Social Sciences through the publication of 

a board to operate the Institute.

The Ministerial Statement on Enrolment Planning (2014/15 - 2019/20)

planning process to ensure improved integrated planning for a diverse and differentiated university sector 

develop their enrolment plans in an integrated fashion, taking into consideration infrastructure planning, research, 

audits and develop comprehensive needs analyses and campus master plans for the next 20 years and submit 

funds to institutions in the 2015/16 to 2017/18 infrastructure funding cycle.

MEDUNSA campus of the University of Limpopo (UL) 

The Policy on Professional uali cations for Technical and ocational Education Lecturers

through the HESA Education Deans Forum and during enrolment planning meetings to encourage them to 

the responsiveness of universities to national needs. 

The Ministerial Committee Report on the Review of Funding of Universities
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management and use of TDG funds by universities. All universities submitted three-year Teaching Development 

recommendations for improvement. The plans focus on interventions to improve student success in university 
education through strengthening university teaching and learning support activities, including mentoring, tutoring 

management of TDG over the 2014/15 – 2016/17 funding cycle. 

 Criteria for the allocation of the research development grant to universities (2014/15 – 2016/17)

particularly at Masters and PhD level.

Reporting Regulations for Public Higher Education Institutions

for the reporting year commencing on 1 January 2015.

The Policy for the Provision of Distance Education in South African Universities in the Context of an Integrated 
Post-School System

The draft Policy on Professional uali cations for Adult Educators and Community Education and Training 
Lecturers

implementation during 2015.

Policy on the Measurements of Research Outputs

International Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO), ensured the successful participation of South Africa in the 
2014 BRICS Think Tanks Council (BTTC) meeting and the 2014 BRICS Academic Forum held in Rio de Janeiro, 

including an academic forum in July 2013 to interrogate the draft BRICS vision document and develop it further 
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development (China); Peace and Security (Russia); Social Justice, Sustainable Development and Quality of Life 

Strengthening Foundation 
Phase Teacher Education Programme

its products including teacher education learning support materials, video products and research outputs. The 
achievements include: 

scholarship support for seven Honours, 54 Masters and 40 PhD students in Childhood Education

has already achieved full accreditation; support for the establishment of SARAECE

Changes to performance indicators during the year

targets are the expected HEMIS audited enrolment/graduate data for the 2012 academic year, reported 
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Performance indicator Original 2013/14  
target *

Revised 2013/14 Original PME Target  
(for 2014/15)

Number of graduates in 
Engineering Sciences 
from universities

11 247 9 974 graduates in 
Engineering Sciences 
from universities for the 
2012 academic year, 

audits  (October 2013)

15 000

Number of graduates 
in Human and Animal 
Health Sciences from 
universities

9 006 8 015 graduates in 
Human Health and 
Animal Health from 
universities for the 2012 

though HEMIS audits  
(October 2013)

15 000



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

70

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

: S
tr

at
eg

ic
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

, p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
, p

la
nn

ed
 ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

(4
.4

.1
.1

)
Ex

pa
nd

 th
e 

hi
gh

er
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
se

ct
or

 in
 

or
de

r t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 
eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

N
um

be
r o

f s
tu

de
nt

s 
en

ro
lle

d 
in

 h
ig

he
r 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
st

ud
ie

s 
at

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

93
8 

20
1

90
9 

71
6 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

95
3 

37
3 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

43
 6

57
 m

or
e 

st
ud

en
ts

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
th

an
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
na

tio
na

l 
en

ro
lm

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

in
 2

01
0 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
; t

he
 s

ys
te

m
 

ra
te

 th
an

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 

pr
ed

ic
te

d

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

he
ad

co
un

t e
nr

ol
m

en
t 

at
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 o

ve
r 2

0 
to

 2
4 

ye
ar

 o
ld

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

ta
rg

et

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
na

tio
na

l 
en

ro
lm

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

in
 2

01
0;

 

at
 a

 h
ig

he
r r

at
e 

th
an

 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 p
re

di
ct

ed

**
 

 T
he

 2
01

2/
13

 d
at

a 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 H

E
M

IS
 a

ud
ite

d 
da

ta
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

1 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2



71

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

tim
e 

en
ro

lm
en

ts
 a

t 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

17
9 

10
5

17
9 

79
3 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

16
9 

76
7 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

tim
e 

en
ro

lm
en

ts
 in

 
th

e 
20

12
 a

ca
de

m
ic

 
ye

ar
 th

an
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 ta
rg

et
)

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
na

tio
na

l 
en

ro
lm

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

in
 2

01
0 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
; t

he
 F

irs
t 

Ti
m

e 
E

nt
ry

 (F
TE

N
) 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

an
d 

le
ss

 
th

an
 th

e 
20

11
 a

ca
de

m
ic

 
ye

ar
 F

TE
N

. T
he

re
 c

ou
ld

 
be

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f r

ea
so

ns
 

fo
r t

hi
s.

 O
ne

 re
as

on
 m

ay
 

fu
nd

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

FT
E

N
 

st
ud

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
sy

st
em

, 
as

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

ha
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

 

sh
or

tfa
ll



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

72

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f p
ub

lic
 

hi
gh

er
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

in
st

itu
tio

ns
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 
st

ud
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
, 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 a

nd
 s

tu
di

es
 

on
 a

ll 
la

nd
 p

ar
ce

l n
ot

 
co

m
pl

et
e

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

N
um

be
r o

f p
ub

lic
 

hi
gh

er
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

in
st

itu
tio

ns
 th

at
 o

ffe
r 

tra
in

in
g 

 in
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

ph
as

e 
te

ac
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n

20
20

21
 

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

O
ne

 m
or

e 
in

st
itu

tio
n 

th
an

 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 ta
rg

et
ed

 
(U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f 

M
pu

m
al

an
ga

)

se
t t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f 

ea
rly

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ph

as
e.

 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

du
rin

g 
20

13
/1

4 
an

d 
to

ok
 it

s 

B
ac

he
lo

r o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

(F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

P
ha

se
 

Te
ac

hi
ng

)  
(F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
14

)



73

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f A
fri

ca
n 

st
ud

en
ts

  e
nr

ol
le

d 
at

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

64
0 

44
3

59
3 

26
0 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

66
2 

12
3 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

68
 8

63
 m

or
e 

A
fri

ca
n 

st
ud

en
ts

 
en

ro
lle

d 
th

an
 

ab
ov

e 
ta

rg
et

)

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
na

tio
na

l 
en

ro
lm

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

in
 2

01
0 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
; t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 A
fri

ca
n 

st
ud

en
ts

 in
 

at
 a

 fa
r h

ig
he

r r
at

e 
th

an
 

or
ig

in
al

ly
 p

re
di

ct
ed

A 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 
on

 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 F

E
T 

Le
ct

ur
er

 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
D

G

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
C

H
E

 fo
r c

om
m

en
ts

 
as

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
H

ig
he

r E
du

ca
tio

n 
A

ct

A 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 
on

 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 F

E
T 

Le
ct

ur
er

 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
D

G
 b

y 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4

A 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 
on

 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 F

E
T 

Le
ct

ur
er

 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
D

G
 o

n 
28

 A
pr

il 
20

14

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

tim
ef

ra
m

e

Ta
rg

et
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
ut

  

pr
oc

es
se

s 



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

74

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
of

fe
rin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 fo

r F
E

T 
co

lle
ge

 le
ct

ur
er

s 
in

 

po
lic

y

10
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 
FE

T 
co

lle
ge

 le
ct

ur
er

 

fo
r s

ub
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
20

14

18
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 h

av
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

te
re

st
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
FE

T 
co

lle
ge

 

ha
ve

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 fo
r 

be
 li

ke
ly

 to
 s

ta
rt 

of
fe

rin
g 

it 
in

 2
01

5.
 

O
th

er
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 

ar
e 

at
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

to
 o

ffe
r 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d:

8 
m

or
e 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ha

ve
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 
in

te
re

st
 a

nd
 a

re
 

be
in

g 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 

Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

or
ig

in
al

ly
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 

th
ro

ug
h 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 a
nd

 
in

-d
ep

th
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 

on
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r t
he

 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 V

C
E

T 
co

lle
ge

 le
ct

ur
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

E
S

A 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

D
ea

ns
 F

or
um

 a
nd

 
en

ro
lm

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

m
ee

tin
gs

, u
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 
ha

ve
 re

sp
on

de
d 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
an

d 
18

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

an
 in

te
re

st

A 
po

lic
y 

 o
n 

ad
ul

t e
du

ca
to

r 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

in
is

te
r f

or
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n

A 
dr

af
t p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 c
om

m
en

t
Th

e 
dr

af
t p

ol
ic

y 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
M

in
is

te
r f

or
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

to
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 c

om
m

en
t

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

fro
m

 th
e 

C
H

E
 a

nd
 is

 

fro
m

 th
e 

M
in

is
te

r f
or

 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n



75

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f f
em

al
e 

st
ud

en
ts

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
at

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

54
2 

99
7

53
9 

59
6 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

55
4 

84
0 

 (2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

15
 2

44
 m

or
e 

th
an

 

ab
ov

e 
ta

rg
et

)

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 

si
de

 o
f t

he
 ta

rg
et

. T
he

 
nu

m
be

r o
f f

em
al

e 

at
 a

 h
ig

he
r r

at
e 

th
an

 
pr

ed
ic

te
d

To
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f 
st

ud
en

ts
 in

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ni

ng
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 a
t 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

14
 3

59
14

 6
00

 (2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

14
 5

18
 (2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r, 
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

82
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

le
ss

 
th

an
 th

e 
en

ro
lm

en
t 

ta
rg

et
)

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

se
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 

si
de

 o
f t

he
 ta

rg
et

R
an

d 
va

lu
e 

of
 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
gr

an
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

fo
r t

he
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f 

R
1.

8 
bi

llio
n

R
2 

bi
llio

n
R

2 
bi

llio
n

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

76

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

re
po

rts
 o

n 
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
gr

an
ts

 to
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
D

G

O
ne

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fu
nd

s 
at

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

O
ne

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fu
nd

s 
at

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

by
 th

e 
D

G
  

(3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4)

O
ne

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fu
nd

s 
at

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

  
(2

 A
pr

il 
20

14
)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
Ta

rg
et

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

ut
  

pr
oc

es
se

s

(4
.4

.1
.2

)
Im

pr
ov

e 
su

cc
es

s 
ra

te
s 

in
 h

ig
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

st
ud

ie
s 

at
 

pu
bl

ic
 in

st
itu

tio
ns

 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 g
ra

du
at

e 
ou

tp
ut

s 
by

 2
01

4

N
um

be
r o

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
re

po
rts

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

te
ac

hi
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
gr

an
ts

 to
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
D

G

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 
us

e 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

do
ne

 
an

d 
a 

re
po

rt 
pr

od
uc

ed

O
ne

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 
te

ac
hi

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fu
nd

s 
at

 u
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

G
 

(3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4)

O
ne

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 
te

ac
hi

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fu
nd

s 
at

 u
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

G
 

(1
4 

A
pr

il 
20

14
)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

Ta
rg

et
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
ut

  

pr
oc

es
se

s

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

su
cc

es
s 

ra
te

 o
f 

st
ud

en
ts

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
at

 p
ub

lic
 h

ig
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

in
st

itu
tio

ns
 

on
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ni
ng

 
(O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

 
(O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

ra
te

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d
th

ro
ug

h 
en

ro
lm

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

. T
hi

s 
in

cr
ea

se
 

m
ay

 b
e 

at
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ef
fo

rt 
by

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

te
ac

hi
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

le
ar

ni
ng



77

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

su
cc

es
s 

ra
te

 o
f s

tu
de

nt
s 

en
ro

lle
d 

in
 h

ig
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

st
ud

ie
s 

at
 

pu
bl

ic
 in

st
itu

tio
ns

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

N
um

be
r o

f g
ra

du
at

es
 

fro
m

 u
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 
16

0 
62

6
16

7 
80

7 
(2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r, 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

16
5 

99
5 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
  n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

1 
81

2 
gr

ad
ua

te
s 

le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
)

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

20
10

 a
nd

 it
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et

N
um

be
r o

f g
ra

du
at

es
 

in
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

ci
en

ce
s 

fro
m

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 

9 
38

7
9 

97
4 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
  b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

9 
97

4 
(2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
  b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

 

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

78

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f g
ra

du
at

es
 

in
 H

um
an

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

A
ni

m
al

 H
ea

lth
 fr

om
 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

8 
07

0
8 

01
5 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
  b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

8 
01

5 
(2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
  b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

N
um

be
r o

f g
ra

du
at

es
 

in
 N

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 

P
hy

si
ca

l S
ci

en
ce

s 
fro

m
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es

5 
52

6
5 

38
7 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

6 
36

6 
(2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

97
9 

m
or

e 
gr

ad
ua

te
s 

th
an

 

m
or

e 
th

an
 ta

rg
et

)

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 
gr

ea
te

r t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

th
e 

kn
oc

k-
on

 e
ffe

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 C

E
S

M
 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
re

po
rte

d 
in

 

ye
ar

. 

N
um

be
r o

f g
ra

du
at

es
 

in
 in

iti
al

 T
ea

ch
er

 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

fro
m

 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

10
 5

43
10

 6
73

13
 7

40
Ta

rg
et

 a
ch

ie
ve

d

3 
06

7 
m

or
e 

gr
ad

ua
te

s 
th

an
 

m
or

e 
th

an
 ta

rg
et

)

Te
ac

he
r E

du
ca

tio
n 

is
 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
m

ul
ti-

 
pr

on
ge

d 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ro

vi
de

d 

si
nc

e 
20

07
. T

he
 ta

rg
et

s 

20
14

/1
5 

A
P

P 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

re
al

is
tic



79

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

(4
.4

.1
.3

)
M

on
ito

r g
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
nd

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 

H
ig

he
r E

du
ca

tio
n 

sy
st

em
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
bu

ild
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

23
 p

ub
lic

 h
ig

he
r 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

O
nl

y 
on

e 
un

iv
er

si
ty

 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

 

ot
he

r i
ns

tit
ut

io
ns

 h
av

e 

ris
k

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

ta
rg

et
un

iv
er

si
tie

s 
un

de
r 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n;
 a

no
th

er
 

th
re

e 
in

st
itu

tio
ns

 th
at

 

th
e 

20
13

 a
ca

de
m

ic
 

be
en

 re
du

ce
d 

to
 

be
en

 b
et

te
r p

ro
gr

es
s 

th
an

 p
re

di
ct

ed



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

80

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 p

riv
at

e 
hi

gh
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
in

st
itu

tio
ns

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 

cr
ite

ria

Fo
ur

 o
f a

 to
ta

l o
f 1

16
 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

st
itu

tio
ns

 
ar

e 
un

de
r n

ot
ic

e 
of

 

to
 s

om
e 

fo
rm

 o
f n

on
–

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

of
 P

H
E

Is
 c

om
pl

yi
ng

 

is
 a

n 
id

ea
l g

oa
l. 

A
ll 

in
st

itu
tio

ns
 a

re
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 
fo

r c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

th
os

e 
th

at
 a

re
 fo

un
d 

th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

re
 

do
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

y 
pu

t o
n 

no
tic

e 
to

 d
er

eg
is

te
r. 

In
st

itu
tio

ns
 m

ay
 a

pp
ea

l 
an

d 
if 

th
ei

r a
pp

ea
l i

s 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 a
nd

 th
ey

 

If 
th

ey
 fa

il 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

th
en

 
th

ey
 a

re
 d

er
eg

is
te

re
d 

an
d 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 m
on

ito
re

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 d
o 

no
t o

pe
ra

te
 il

le
ga

lly
. B

y 

ye
ar

, a
ll 

ca
se

s 
of

 n
on

-

in
st

itu
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

ei
th

er
 

be
en

 d
er

eg
is

te
re

d 
or

 a
re

 

Fo
ur

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
 re

m
ai

n 



81

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ta
tu

te
s 

of
 

an
d 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
in

 
un

iv
er

si
ty

 s
ta

tu
te

s 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t; 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
in

 th
e 

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

N
um

be
r o

f 

M
in

is
te

ria
l c

ou
nc

il 
ap

po
in

te
es

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed

17
24

17
 o

f 2
5 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

ha
ve

 s
ta

tu
te

s 
th

at
 

ap
po

in
te

es
. O

f t
he

se
 

17
, s

ev
en

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
 

ha
ve

 v
ac

an
ci

es
, 

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

S
ev

en
 u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

M
in

is
te

ria
l 

ap
po

in
te

es

U
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 a
re

 
au

to
no

m
ou

s 
in

st
itu

tio
ns

 
an

d 
th

ei
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
st

at
ut

es
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f M

in
is

te
ria

l 
ap

po
in

te
es

 fo
r t

he
ir 

C
ou

nc
il.

 T
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ha
s 

re
qu

es
te

d 

th
ei

r s
ta

tu
te

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
e 

M
in

is
te

r t
o 

ap
po

in
t 

C
ou

nc
ils

. W
hi

le
 s

om
e 

of
 th

es
e 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

ey
 a

re
 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

re
qu

es
t, 

ot
he

rs
 h

av
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 d

o 
no

t i
nt

en
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y.
 T

hi
s 

in
di

ca
to

r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

82

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 

M
in

is
te

ria
l a

pp
oi

nt
ee

s

O
ne

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 h
el

d 
on

  
1 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

3

O
ne

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

M
in

is
te

ria
l a

pp
oi

nt
ee

s

O
ne

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

M
in

is
te

ria
l a

pp
oi

nt
ee

s 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 h

el
d

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

(4
.4

.1
.4

)
To

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
re

se
ar

ch
 c

ap
ac

ity
 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 o

f 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

N
um

be
r o

f 
po

st
gr

ad
ua

te
 

gr
ad

ua
te

s

43
 0

67
44

 3
01

 (2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

45
 5

98
 (2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r, 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

1 
29

7 
m

or
e 

gr
ad

ua
te

s 
th

an
 

ab
ov

e 
ta

rg
et

)

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et

N
um

be
r o

f H
on

ou
rs

 
gr

ad
ua

te
s

21
 3

78
24

 0
19

 (2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r, 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

20
 9

75
 (2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r, 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

gr
ad

ua
te

s 
th

an
 

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 
si

de
 o

f t
he

 ta
rg

et
. T

he
 

nu
m

be
r o

f H
on

ou
rs

 

pr
ed

ic
te

d 
by

 in
st

itu
tio

ns



83

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f R
es

ea
rc

h 
M

as
te

rs
 g

ra
du

at
es

5 
28

1
4 

97
8 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

6 
07

6 
(2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

1 
09

8 
m

or
e 

gr
ad

ua
te

s 
th

an
 

ab
ov

e 
ta

rg
et

)

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
. T

he
 m

uc
h 

gr
ea

te
r n

um
be

r t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 g

ra
du

at
es

 

fo
cu

s 
of

 u
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 

M
as

te
rs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 to
 

re
se

ar
ch

 M
as

te
rs

 a
nd

 

re
se

ar
ch

 in
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 
an

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t b
y 

th
e 

D
H

E
T 

an
d 

N
R

F 
ov

er
 

tim
e



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

84

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

N
um

be
r o

f D
oc

to
ra

l 
gr

ad
ua

te
s

1 
57

6
1 

78
5 

(2
01

2 
ac

ad
em

ic
 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

1 
87

9 
(2

01
2 

ac
ad

em
ic

 

H
E

M
IS

 a
ud

its
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

94
 m

or
e 

gr
ad

ua
te

s 
in

 th
e 

20
12

 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r 

th
an

 ta
rg

et
ed

 

ta
rg

et
)

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
. T

he
 m

uc
h 

gr
ea

te
r n

um
be

r t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 g

ra
du

at
es

 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t b

y 
th

e 
D

H
E

T 
an

d 
N

R
F 

ov
er

 ti
m

e

N
um

be
r o

f 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
 u

ni
ts

11
 1

91
10

 8
07

 (2
01

2 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r, 

as
 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 th

e 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

O
ut

pu
ts

 
R

ep
or

t, 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

G
 b

y 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
14

)

12
 3

63
 (2

01
2 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r, 
as

 
re

po
rte

d 
in

 th
e 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
ep

or
t, 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
G

 b
y 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

14
)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

1 
55

6 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
un

its
 m

or
e 

th
an

 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 ta

rg
et

)

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
. U

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 

ha
ve

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

ei
r 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
se

ar
ch

 
re

co
rd

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
at

tra
ct

 g
re

at
er

 s
ub

si
di

es
 

an
d 

ha
ve

 im
pr

ov
ed

 th
ei

r 
re

se
ar

ch
 o

ut
pu

ts
 m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
th

an
 p

re
di

ct
ed



85

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

IG
H

ER
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
V

O
TE

 1
7

20
13

/1
4 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

St
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
e*  

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 
A

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
20

12
/1

3**
Pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
13

/1
4

A
ct

ua
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

20
13

/1
4

D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
nn

ed
 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 a

ct
ua

l 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
20

13
/1

4 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
de

vi
at

io
n

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

3:
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 E

D
U

C
AT

IO
N

 

R
at

io
 o

f r
es

ea
rc

h 
ou

tp
ut

 u
ni

ts
 p

er
 

in
st

ru
ct

io
na

l/r
es

ea
rc

h 
st

af
f

1.
25

1.
30

 (2
01

2 
as

 
re

po
rte

d 
in

 th
e 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
ep

or
t, 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
G

 b
y 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

14
)

1.
38

 (2
01

2 
as

 
re

po
rte

d 
in

 th
e 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
O

ut
pu

ts
 

R
ep

or
t, 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
G

 b
y 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

14
)

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

Th
e 

ra
tio

 is
 0

.0
8 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ro

lm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

va
ria

tio
n 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
. U

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
 

ha
ve

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 fa

r 
be

tte
r t

ha
n 

pr
ed

ic
te

d

(4
.4

.1
.5

)
To

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
H

ig
he

r E
du

ca
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

 
(H

EM
IS

)

N
um

be
r o

f u
pd

at
es

 
on

 th
e 

H
E

M
IS

 fo
r 

au
di

te
d 

st
ud

en
t a

nd
 

st
af

f d
at

a

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

 T
ar

ge
t a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e

N
um

be
r o

f u
pd

at
es

 
on

 th
e 

H
E

M
IS

 s
ys

te
m

 

sp
ac

e 
da

ta
 fr

om
 th

e 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s

O
ne

 a
nn

ua
l u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 2
3 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

O
ne

 a
nn

ua
l u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 2
4 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

O
ne

 a
nn

ua
l u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 2
4 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

N
on

e



DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

86

system.

published.

enrolment planning process institutions have been encouraged to utilise the foundation provisioning grant 

monitor enrolments in foundation provisioning programmes.

improve student throughput.

regulatory criteria is an ideal goal. All institutions are evaluated for compliance and those that are found 

targeted. Universities are autonomous institutions and their individual statutes determine the number 
of Ministerial appointees for their Council. Currently seven of the 25 universities have statutes that do 
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have indicated they are considering the request, others have indicated that they do not intend to comply. 

be removed from the APP in 2014/15 as the Department is not able to ensure that universities comply.

Masters and PhD graduates. It is possible that a lack of funding for Honours students may be an issue. 

being developed for implementation across the system.

SUB-PROGRAMME 2013/14 2012/13

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Programme 
Management: 
University 
Education

1 791 1 786 5 1 667 1 620 47

University 
Academic Planning 
and Management 
Support

5 870 908 5 870 868 40 5 290 794 5 290 734 60

University Financial 
Planning and 
Information 
Systems

8 723 8 685 38 10 049 9 894 155

University Policy 
and Development

20 272 20 226 46 16 880 16 761 119

Teacher Education 9 046 8 947 99 7 020 6 925 95

University 
Subsidies

22 388 767 22 388 767 - 20 902 860 20 902 779 81

Total 28 299 507 28 299 279 228 26 229 270 26 228 713 557

Programme 4: VOCATIONAL AND CONTINUING EDUCATION 

The purpose of the programme is to plan, develop, evaluate, monitor and maintain national policy, programmes, 
assessment practices and systems for vocational and continuing education and training, including further 
education and training colleges and post-literacy adult education and training.

There are three budget sub-programmes:

Programme Management

Planning and Institutional Support
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Strategic Objectives

Increase access and success in programmes leading to intermediate and high-level learning by 2014.

Strengthen the institutional capacity of Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) institutions 

Provide support for the implementation of monitoring, evaluation and research for the improvement of the 
vocational education and training sub-system.

White Paper 
for Post-School Education and Training (2013) remained a strategic priority of the VCET Branch. 

in a variety of college programme offerings. This demonstrated the need for education and training opportunities 
for the youth.

The Branch continued to intensify lecturer training and student support services in TVET colleges to increase the 

in areas not directly serviced by Higher Education institutions of learning. 

also undertaken in pursuance of expanded access to education and training opportunities for both the youth and 
the adult cohorts. 

National Policy on Conduct, 
Administration and Management of Examinations. Colleges and AET centres are continuing to improve by 

improvement in the administration and management of examinations. Improvement is determined through the 
reduction of the number and the frequency of examination irregularities encountered per cycle. For the integrity 
and reliability of examinations it is imperative that all institutions improve the quality of the conduct of examinations 
for approval of results by the quality councils.

Changes to performance indicators during the year

Time-bound).
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Private colleges responding to the Annual Survey: The Department needs to enforce the Regulation 

year.

Treasury.

Improved conditions of services for the AET Educators: The matter shall be referred back to HEDCOM, 
CEM and the National Treasury to secure additional funding to standardise the conditions of service of 
educators in the AET sector.

addressed to ensure that as many students access L5 programmes in colleges as possible. This is 
currently looked at by the University Education Branch since the funding for all HE programmes falls 

develop the cognate skills of learners in mathematical operations. Plans are already in place to establish 
Mathematics and Science Hubs at colleges in order to build the expertise required in these critical 

is ongoing evaluation and improvement of student textbooks to ensure that student learning materials 
enhance their chances of success in the examinations.

Training on the NASCA and GETCA: The training on the NASCA and the GETCA is expected to take 
place during the 3rd and 4th

secure student funding for enrolments in the colleges in 2016.

suggests that FET colleges may not effectively apply the academic merit eligibility criteria outlined in the 
Bursary Scheme Administration Guidelines.

submitted to the Minister for approval.
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3 083 AET centres responding to an annual survey conducted by DHET: The number of centres 

AET centres are operational so that only those that are operational can submit the survey forms. This is 
against the background of the reason for underperformance.

SUB-PROGRAMME 2013/14 2012/13

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Programme 
Management: 
Vocational and 
Continuing Education 
and Training  

8 165 8 120 45 4 749 4 717 32

Planning and 
Institutional Support

5 488 878 5 488 860 18 4 862 349 4 862 215 134

Programmes and 189 763 189 408 355 181 054 179 009 2 045

Total 5 686 806 5 686 388 418 5 048 152 5 045 941 2 211

The purpose of the programme is to promote and monitor the National Skills Development Strategy. Develop a 

There are four budget sub-programmes:

Programme Management

SETA Coordination

National Skills Development Services

Quality Development and Promotion.

Strategic Objectives
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training of artisans and many more.

Changes to performance indicators during the year

effect from 1 April 2012, has necessitated the Department to effect changes to its Annual Performance Plans 
(APP) especially in relation to performance indicators for Programme 5.  For this reason, during the year the 
Minister of Higher Education and Training approved an addendum to the 2013/14 APP effectively changing the 

performance information; three performance indicators relating to this. 
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skills informally and have been on formal programmes such as apprenticeships. These are therefore 
Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) candidates.  The result is that many of such persons have not 
developed enough skills that cover the entire scope of learning required to be a competent artisan in a 

full scope of the trade and based on the evaluation of that evidence be given access to a trade test. A total 

DHET (NAMB) and the QCTO on credit for trade tasks but the differences are being resolved. Both the 
regulations and system are scheduled for completion by 31 March 2015.

SUB-
PROGRAMME

2013/14 2012/13

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Programme 
Management: 
Skills 
Development

1 324 1 223 101 2 061 2 049 12

SETA 
Coordination

69 231 69 062 169 65 033 64 997 36

National Skills 
Development 
Service

7 729 7 691 38 5 887 5 864 23

Quality 
Development 
and Promotion

21 747 21 747 - 20 352 20  352 -

Total 100 031 99 723 308 93 333 93 262 71
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Departmental receipts

The tariffs charged by the Department are in respect of National Technical Examinations, Private Further 
Education and Training Colleges, Private Higher Education Institutions and trade tests. Different policies apply to 

Table 1: Departmental Receipts

Departmental receipts

2013/14 2012/13

Estimate

Actual 
Amount 

Collected

(Over)/
Under 

Collection Estimate

Actual 
Amount 

Collected

(Over)/
Under 

Collection

Sales of goods and services 
produced by department 5 583 6 042 (459) 4 530 4 949 (419)

other used current goods 60 29 31 24 16 8

Transfers received - - - 20 80 (60)

Interest, dividends and rent 
on land 3 096 3 374 (278) 3 514 3 458 56

Sale of capital assets - - - - - -

assets and liabilities 2 176 2 435 (259) 2 497 2 410 87

Total 10 915 11 880 (965) 10 585 10 913 (328)

test fees.

Programme expenditure

funds provided for posts on the staff establishment of the Department that became vacant during the year and 

Information. 
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Table 2: Programme Expenditure

Programme Name

2013/14 2012/13

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Administration 203 729 203 044 685 172 151 171 655 496

Human Resource 
Development, 
Planning and 
Monitoring 
Coordination 43 827 43 535 292 43 245 42 829 416

University 
Education 28 299 507 28 299 279 228 26 229 270 26 228 713 557

Vocational and 
Continuing 
Education and 
Training 5 686 806 5 686 388 418 5 048 152 5 045 941 2 211

Skills Development 100 031 99 723 308 93 333 93 262 71

Subtotal 34 333 900 34 331 969 1 931 31 586 151 31 582 400 3 751

Statutory 
Appropriation 12 090 186 12 090 186 - 11 694 493 11 694 493 -

Total 46 424 086 46 422 155 1 931 43 280 644 43 276 893 3 751
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Transfer payments to public entities

Public entities

Table 3: Transfer payments to public entities

Name of public entity
Services rendered by the public 
entity

Amount 
transferred 

to the 
public entity 

2012/13

Amount 
transferred 

to the 
public entity 

2013/14

Education Training and 
Development Practices SETA

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the education, training 
and development sector 175 -

Council on Higher Education (CHE) Advise to the Minister of Higher 
Education and Training on all 
higher education policy matters, 
implementation of the system of quality 
assurance for all higher education, 
monitoring the state of the higher 
education system and contribution to 
the development of higher education 
through intellectual engagement 39 993 41 888

National Student Financial Aid 
Scheme (NSFAS)

It is responsible for administering loans 
and bursaries and allocating these to 
eligible students, developing criteria 
and conditions for the granting of loans 
and bursaries to eligible students in 

Education and Training, raising funds, 
recovering loans, maintaining and 
analysing a database, undertaking 
research for the better utilisation of 

Minister on matters relating to student 
5 195 661 5 769 405

Authority (SAQA)
SAQA focuses on upholding the 

Forum, including ensuring access, 
quality, redress and development for all 
learners, through an integrated national 

45 723 49 401

Quality Council for Trades and 
Occupations (QCTO)

To develop and quality assure 

responsive to the labour market and 
developmental state initiatives 20 352 21 747

National Skills Fund (NSF) To fund national skills development 

the purpose of the Act as determined by 
the Accounting Authority 2 338 898 2 416 368
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Name of public entity
Services rendered by the public 
entity

Amount 
transferred 

to the 
public entity 

2012/13

Amount 
transferred 

to the 
public entity 

2013/14

Sector Education and Training Authorities

Agriculture Sector Education and 
Training Authority (AGRISETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in both primary and 
secondary agriculture sectors 223 761 261 707

Banking Sector Education and 
Training Authority (BANKSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the banking and micro-

703 956 457 535

Construction Education and Training 
Authority (CETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the construction 
industry 464 728 436 397

Energy and Water Sector Education 
and Training Authority (EWSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 

sector 209 484 206 825

Education, Training and 
Development Practices (ETDP)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the education, training 
and development sector 303 727 325 635

Financial and Accounting Services 
Sector Education and Training 
Authority (FASSET)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 

accounting services sector 373 559 396 236

Food and Beverages Sector 
Education and Training Authority 
(FOODBEV)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the food and beverages 
sector 225 886 247 754

Health and Welfare Sector 
Education and Training Authority 
(HWSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 

sector 292 361 303 907

Chemical Industries Education and 
Training Authority (CHIETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the chemical industries 
sector 392 090 431 724

Transport Education and Training 
Authority (TETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the transport sector 506 034 543 392

Public Service Sector Education and 
Training Authority (PSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the public service sector 1 491 1 399
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Name of public entity
Services rendered by the public 
entity

Amount 
transferred 

to the 
public entity 

2012/13

Amount 
transferred 

to the 
public entity 

2013/14

Insurance Sector Education and 
Training Authority (INSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the insurance sector 317 301 326 267

Media, Information and 
Communication Technologies SETA 
(MICTS)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the information system, 
electronics and telecommunications 
technologies sector 575 264 580 263

Manufacturing, Engineering and 
Related Services Sector Education 
and Training Authority (MERSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the manufacturing, 
engineering and related services sector 1 043 287 1 157 926

(MQA)
Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the mining and minerals 
sector 823 849 859 647

Safety and Security Education and 
Training Authority (SASSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the safety and security 
sector 200 484 211 423

Service Sector Education and 
Training Authority (SERVICES 
SETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the services sector 1 071 772 1 237 704

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality 
and Sport Education and Training 
(CATHSSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the culture, arts, 
tourism, hospitality and sport sectors 228 026 253 541

Wholesale and Retail Sector 
Education and Training Authority 
(W&R SETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 

sector 732 626 752 680

Local Government Education and 
Training Authority (LGSETA)

Provision of relevant, quality and 
accessible education, training and 
development in the local government 
sector 392 035 408 352

Fibre Processing and Manufacturing 
Sector Education and Training 
Authority (FP&MSETA)

Facilitate, coordinate and monitor the 

processing and manufacturing sector 273 874 273 504

With regard to the monitoring of expenditure, all public entities, including the SETAs, provide quarterly reports   
as legally required.
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Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities

Transfer payments (excluding public entities)

Table 4: Transfer payments (excluding public entities)

Name of transferee

Compliance 

38(1)(j) of 
the PFMA

Amount 
transferred

Universities

Cape Peninsula University of Technology Subsidy Yes 975 540

Central University of Technology, Free State Subsidy Yes 428 626

Durban Institute of Technology Subsidy Yes 770 718

Mangosuthu University of Technology Subsidy Yes 331 923

Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University Subsidy Yes 784 804

North West University Subsidy Yes 1 228 919

Rhodes University Subsidy Yes 358 917

Subsidy Yes 1 494 423

Subsidy Yes 1 127 750

University of Fort Hare Subsidy Yes 457 347

University of Free State Subsidy Yes 968 944

University of Johannesburg Subsidy Yes 1 385 540

Subsidy Yes 1 512 305

University of Mpumalanga Subsidy Yes 58 153

Subsidy Yes 180 302

University of Limpopo Subsidy Yes 850 172

University of Pretoria Subsidy Yes 1 810 933

University of South Africa Subsidy Yes 2 155 212

University of Stellenbosch Subsidy Yes 1 125 066

University of Venda Subsidy Yes 445 329

University of Western Cape Subsidy Yes 731 479

Subsidy Yes 1 212 593

University of Zululand Subsidy Yes 485 370

Vaal University of Technology Subsidy Yes 596 452

Walter Sisulu University of Science and Technology Subsidy Yes 804 988

National Institute for Higher Education: Mpumalanga Subsidy Yes 78 389

National Institute for Higher Education: Northern Cape Subsidy Yes 28 573



DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

115

Name of transferee

Compliance 

38(1)(j) of 
the PFMA

Amount 
transferred

Foreign Government and International Organisations

Contribution No 2 416

Contribution No 511

Higher Education South Africa (HESA) Earmarked funds for Yes
7 000

Buffalo City College Subsidy Yes 53 155

East Cape Midlands College Subsidy Yes 78 652

Ikhala College Subsidy Yes 51 165

Subsidy Yes 71 649

King Hintsa College Subsidy Yes 56 143

King Sabata College Subsidy Yes 80 898

Lovedale College Subsidy Yes 38 071

Subsidy Yes 59 712

Flavius Mareka College Subsidy Yes 24 718

Gold Fields College Subsidy Yes 27 431

Maluti College Subsidy Yes 49 015

Motheo College Subsidy Yes 91 473

Central Johannesburg College Subsidy Yes 45 146

Ekhurhuleni East College Subsidy Yes 58 558

Ekhurhuleni West College Subsidy Yes 71 648

Sedibeng College Subsidy Yes 96 265

South West College Subsidy Yes 126 946

Subsidy Yes 71 319

Subsidy Yes 46 627

Western College Subsidy Yes 86 034

Coastal College Subsidy Yes 80 245

Elangeni College Subsidy Yes 85 279

Esayidi College Subsidy Yes 66 109

Subsidy Yes 152 318

Mnambithi College Subsidy Yes 54 934

Mthashana College Subsidy Yes 37 253

Subsidy Yes 39 498

Subsidy Yes 99 461



DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

116

Name of transferee

Compliance 

38(1)(j) of 
the PFMA

Amount 
transferred

Umgungundlovu College Subsidy Yes 28 359

Capricorn College Subsidy Yes 39 107

Lephalale College Subsidy Yes 10 356

Letaba College Subsidy Yes 22 548

Mopani College Subsidy Yes 42 482

Sekhukhune College Subsidy Yes 22 137

Vhembe College Subsidy Yes 88 314

Waterberg College Subsidy Yes 13 804

Subsidy Yes 78 654

Gert Sibande College Subsidy Yes 115 250

Nkangala College Subsidy Yes 63 376

Rural College Subsidy Yes 24 305

Urban College Subsidy Yes 23 568

Orbit College Subsidy Yes 128 254

Taletso College Subsidy Yes 46 607

Vuselela College Subsidy Yes 43 911

Boland College Subsidy Yes 42 204

Subsidy Yes 31 361

False Bay College Subsidy Yes 51 323

Northlink College Subsidy Yes 66 903

South Cape College Subsidy Yes 41 813

West Coast College Subsidy Yes 88 831

the Education, Training and Development Practices SETA.

Training Authorities (SETAs) and the National Skills Fund for levies received from the South African Revenue 
Service.

With regard to the monitoring of expenditure, the Department is receiving expenditure reports on the spending 
of the FET Colleges Conditional Grants on a monthly basis from provincial education departments. Regarding  
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universities and universities of technology annual reports are evaluated by the Department. The transfers to 
international organisations and the Education, Training and Development Practices SETA are annual member 
contributions and no monitoring of this expenditure takes place.

6. Conditional grants

Table 5: FET Colleges Conditional Grant

transferred
Provincial education departments

Purpose of the grant To ensure the successful transfer of the function of FET colleges to 
the Department of Higher Education and Training

Expected outputs of the grant Transfer of FET colleges management staff to the Department of 

Transfer of non-management staff to the Department of Higher 

Secondment of provincial education department staff to the 

Implementation of the funding norms and standards for FET colleges

Monitor the support of FET colleges by provincial education 
departments



DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

118

Actual outputs achieved
Higher and Training

Collective agreements for the transfer of non-management staff 

on 4 February 2014

the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) and 

nine FET colleges

The implementation of the Funding Norms and Standards for FET 

education departments (PEDs). With the function shift processes, 

and Training

outcomes has been developed and approved

performance in the examinations. They have monitored the progress 
and implementation of the improvement plans at the campus level

prior to the signing of the collective agreement. 11 FET colleges 

Amount per amended DORA 2 454 188

2 454 188

Reasons if amount per DORA not 
transferred

N/A

Amount spent by the provincial 2 422 614

Reasons for the funds unspent by 
the entity

N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the 
transferring department

The Department receives expenditure reports on the spending of the 
FET Colleges Conditional Grants on a monthly basis from provincial 
education departments. Monitoring visits are conducted

National Treasury.

The Department did not retain any portion of the conditional grant for administration costs.

Amounts allocated to Higher Education Subsidies, the National Student Financial Aid Scheme, the Higher 
Education HIV and AIDS Programme and the establishment of universities in Mpumalanga and Northern Cape 

earmarked.
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None.

7. Donor funds

Table 6: Donor funds: European Union (claims recoverable)

Name of donor European Union

Full amount of funding R141 million

Period of the commitment 2010 - 2013

Purpose of the funding European Union Primary Education Sector Support Programme

Expected outputs Research, programme development and materials development for 
Foundation Phase Teacher Education, post-graduate scholarships, 
bursaries for initial teacher education and seeding the establishment of 

Actual outputs achieved Achievements include: support for 13 research and development 

programme in 2009; scholarship support for seven Honours, 54 Masters 
and 40 PhD students in Childhood Education; 200 bursaries for African 

programmes; the establishment of the South African Journal for Early 

in 2014/15, and has already established itself by being accredited); 
the establishment of a South African Research association for Early 

become self-funding in 2014/15); a number of regional conferences and 

a further 21 articles accepted for publication, and 36 articles in various 

of a teaching school linked to that campus

15 511

Amount spent by the Department 18 406

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor Progress reports to be submitted to the donor.
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Table 7: Donor funds: European Union Budget Support (In Cash)

Name of donor European Union Budget Support

Full amount of funding R60 million

Period of the commitment 1 October 2012 - 30 September 2014

Purpose of the funding General

Expected outputs Part A: Policy and Research Services: Implementation of the 

Provision of Career Development (Information, Advice and Guidance) 
Services.

An advocacy and communication action plan for integrated career 
services in the country

Guidelines and protocols for partnerships in career services

A career services agenda for the country and the commissioning 
of initial research on international benchmarking and impact of the 
services

standards

Implementation of a plan for the establishment of a national career 
development forum for the country. 

Part B: System Development: Further development of the National 
Career Advice Portal.

occupation information centre, geospatial components, a funding 
module and a career services advice module

Expand the National Career Advice Portal content, including learning 

Actual outputs achieved
Finance and Accounting Services SETA, Manufacturing, Engineering 
and Related Services SETA, Chemical Industries SETA and the South 

development information system and is live (
ncap

in centres up to September 2014

4 286
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Amount spent by the Department 1 155

Reasons for the funds unspent

Monitoring mechanism by the donor Progress reports to be submitted to the donor

Table 8: Donor funds: European Union Budget Support (In Cash)

Name of donor European Union Budget Support

Full amount of funding R99 million

Period of the commitment Commences in October 2014

Purpose of the funding General

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved Additional allocation

-

Amount spent by the Department -

Monitoring mechanism by the donor Progress reports to be submitted to the donor

Table 9: Donor funds: European Union Budget Support (In Cash)

Name of donor European Union

Full amount of funding R53 million

Period of the commitment Commences in 2014

Purpose of the funding General

Expected outputs Development of an open learning system for post-school education 
and training

Actual outputs achieved

Open Learning System in Post-school Education and Training in South 

-

Amount spent by the Department -

Monitoring mechanism by the donor Progress reports to be submitted to the donor
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Table 10: Donor funds: Danish Government (In Kind)

Name of donor Danish Government

Full amount of funding R32 million

Period of the commitment Up to December 2014

Purpose of the funding To support the education and skills development programme in South 
Africa

Expected outputs Assistance to 12 FET colleges in four different provinces to improve 

support. Assistance to the Department to continue development of a 

and other inputs

Actual outputs achieved

7 461

Amount spent by the Department 7 461

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor Progress reports to be submitted to the donor

Table 11: Donor funds: Netherlands Government (In Kind)

Name of donor Netherlands Government

Full amount of funding R21.906 million

Period of the commitment Four year period  commenced in 2011/12

Purpose of the funding

4 654

Amount spent by the Department 4 654

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor Progress reports to be submitted to donor
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Table 12: Donor funds: Netherlands Government (In Kind)

Name of donor Netherlands Government

Full amount of funding R27.432 million

Period of the commitment Four year period commenced in 2011/12

Purpose of the funding To strengthen the Management Information Systems and Information 

Expected outputs Capacity building in higher education through the Netherlands 
Universities Foundation for International Cooperation: Implementation 
of standardised business management system in three pilot further 
education and training colleges

10 325

Amount spent by the Department 10 325

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor Progress reports to be submitted to donor

Table 13: Donor funds: Japanese Government (In Kind)

Name of donor Japanese Government

Full amount of funding R62.154 million

Period of the commitment December 2013 - March 2016

Purpose of the funding To train students in productivity, soft and innovation skills through the 

Expected outputs Trained students in productivity, soft and innovation skills

Actual outputs achieved

resource development that meets industry demand and to mainstream 

university

-

Amount spent by the Department -

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor
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Table 14: Donor funds: USAID (In Cash)

Name of donor USAID

Full amount of funding R1.147 million

Period of the commitment 2013 - 2015

Purpose of the funding To fund Doctorate candidates from selected countries at the University 

Expected outputs Doctorate candidates from selected countries to study at the University 

Actual outputs achieved Doctorate candidates from selected countries studied at the University 

1 147

Amount spent by the Department 1 147

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Table 15: Donor funds: European Union (In Kind)

Name of donor European Union

Full amount of funding Three Million Euros

Period of the commitment Five years

Purpose of the funding Mobility scheme for South African Masters and Doctoral students, 

Expected outputs

time at a European university

Actual outputs achieved
as part of the Erasmus Mundus Scholarship Programme

N/A

Amount spent by the Department N/A

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A
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Table 16: Donor funds: Chinese Government (In Kind)

Name of donor Chinese Government

Full amount of funding -

Period of the commitment Ongoing

Purpose of the funding Scholarships to study at Chinese universities

Expected outputs Students to study at Chinese universities

Actual outputs achieved 22 students received scholarships to study at Chinese universities

N/A

Amount spent by the Department N/A

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Table 17: Donor funds: Russian Government (In Kind)

Name of donor Russian Government

Full amount of funding -

Period of the commitment Ongoing

Purpose of the funding Scholarships to study marine and aeronautical engineering in Russia

Expected outputs Students to study marine and aeronautical engineering in Russia

Actual outputs achieved Four students received scholarships to study in Russia

N/A

Amount spent by the Department N/A

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor N/A
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Table 18: Donor funds: European Union (In Kind)

Name of donor European Union Dialogue Facility

Full amount of funding R4.169 million

Period of the commitment Ongoing

Purpose of the funding Funding for a proposal for research on skills planning

Expected outputs Proposal for research on skills planning

Actual outputs achieved
European Union Dialogue Facility. The terms of reference for the 

European Union. The European Union is in the process of procuring 
the service

400

Amount spent by the Department 400

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor N/A

8. Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan



PART C: 
GOVERNANCE
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1. Introduction
The Department is committed to maintain the highest standards of governance. Good governance structures are 

Policies for various matters have been developed and have been communicated to staff members.

The budget of the Department is aligned to the Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan of the Department 

Minister and the Department.

2. Risk Management

Committee that provides advice on the overall system of Risk Management.

Progress on implementation of the Risk Management processes is reported regularly to the Audit Committee and 

2013. 

processes by the key stakeholders and incorporation into critical processes such as Planning, Monitoring and 
Reporting. 

3. Fraud and Corruption
A Fraud Prevention Plan is in place as required by the Treasury Regulations to prevent and detect fraudulent 

Policy forms part of the Fraud Prevention Plan and the Department utilises the National Public Service Anti-

annual basis. Furthermore, all employees of the Department are compelled to request permission from the 
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5. Code of Conduct
The Code of Conduct for Public Servants, developed by the Public Service Commission to promote a high 

Code of Conduct to all staff members.

6. Health Safety and Environmental Issues

7. Portfolio Committee  

8. SCOPA Resolutions
None.

None.

10. Internal Audit and Audit Committee

Key activities and objectives of Internal Audit

disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of governance, risk management and control 
processes.
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main activities of Internal Audit:

Compile a three-year rolling strategic and annual audit plan

 - Risk management systems

 - Control systems

 - Governance systems

Report to management and the Audit Committee.

Corporate governance

Information systems audit

Transfer payments

Division of revenue act payments

Performance information

Personal administration

Inventory and assets

Tenders

Financial statements

Other operational audits

Key activities and objectives of the Audit Committee

conduct.

The main activities are:

Consider the effectiveness of the internal control systems

the risks
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compliance

approval to the DG.

The Audit Committee is in place and functions effectively, as required by the Treasury Regulations and the PFMA. 

provides secretarial services.

Attendance of audit committee meetings:

Name Internal/ 
External 
member

Appointed Meetings 
attended

Resigned

Prof. DP van der Nest D Tech External 1/11/2010 5 N/A

Ms S Padayachy M Comm External 1/11/2010 4 N/A

Mr S Makhubu CA, SA External 6/6/2011 5 N/A
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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Introduction
The statistics and information published in this part of the annual report are required in terms of Chapter 1, Part 
III J.3 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001 and have been prescribed by the Minister for the Public Service 

The statistical tables provide high-level information on key human resource issues. The information aims to 

Higher Education and Training:-

manner, 

of departments to key stakeholders.

Personnel Related Expenditure

Expenditure
Note:

cost in the tables.

provide an indication of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary bands 

Human Resources Oversight Statistics

TABLE 1.1 – Personnel costs by programme, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Programme Total 
expenditure

Personnel 
expenditure

Professional 
and Special 

Services

Training 
expenditure

Personnel 
cost as a 
% of total 

expenditure

Average 
personnel 
cost per 

employee

Number of 
employees

1 203 044 109 076 2 974 777 53.72 328.542 332

2 43 535 35 138 116 8 80.71 516.735 68

3 28 299 279 33 129 694 26 0.12 409.000 81

4 5 686 388 79 182 3 001 176 1.39 375.270 211

5 99 723 65 046 0 0 65.23 236.531 275

Sub total 34 331 969 321 571 6 785 987 0.94 332.544 967

Statutory 12 090 186 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 46 422 155 321 571 6 785 987 0.69 332.544 967
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TABLE 1.2 – Personnel costs by salary bands, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Salary band Personnel expenditure % of total personnel 
cost

Average personnel 
cost per employee

 
(Levels 1-2)

995 0.31 49.750

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 46 197 14.36 126.912

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8)

65 662 20.42 275.891

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

131 543 40.91 496.389

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-16) 

77 174 24.00 964.675

Total 321 571 100.00 332.544

 
1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Programme Salaries Overtime  Medical Assistance

Personnel 
costs 

Amount Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost

Amount Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost

Amount HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost

Amount Medical 
assistance 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost

(R‘000) (R‘000) (R‘000) (R‘000) (R‘000)

1 109 076 73 384 67.28 2 394 2.19 2 311 2.12 3 428 3.14

2 35 138 24 288 69.12 18 0.05 549 1.56 720 2.05

3 33 129 22 710 68.55 131 0.40 450 1.36 777 2.35

4 79 182 52 180 65.90 2 741 3.46 1 761 2.22 2 586 3.27

5 65 046 44 660 68.66 1 793 2.76 2 243 3.45 3 537 5.44

Total 321 571 217 222 67.55 7 077 2.20 7 314 2.27 11 048 3.44
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1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Salary band Salaries Overtime Medical 
Assistance

Personnel 
costs

Amount Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost

Amount Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost

Amount HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost

Amount Medical 
assistance 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost

(R‘000) (R‘000) (R‘000) (R‘000) (R‘000)

 
(Levels 1-2)

995 647 65.03 2 0.20 90 9.05 41 4.12

Skilled 
(Levels 3-5)

46 197 26 204 56.72 3 624 7.84 2 648 5.73 3 705 8.02

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels  6-8)

65 662 41 538 63.26 2 503 3.81 2 129 3.24 3 335 5.08

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

131 543 90 803 69.03 948 0.72 1 720 1.31 3 253 2.47

Senior 
Management 
(Levels 13-16)

77 174 58 030 75.19 0 0.00 727 0.94 714 0.93

Total 321 571 217 222 67.55 7 077 2.20 7 314 2.27 11 048 3.44

2. Employment and Vacancies

terms of three key variables:- programme (Table 2.1), salary band (Table 2.2) and critical occupation (Table 2.3).

vacancy information for the key critical occupations of the Department. 

TABLE  2.1 – Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2014

Programme Number of posts Number of posts Vacancy rate % Number of posts 

the establishment

1 350 332 5.14 18

2 76 68 10.53 0

3 100 81 19.00 0

4 218 211 3.21 4

5 295 275 6.78 2

Total 1 039 967 6.93 24
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Note:

TABLE 2.2 – Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2014

Salary band Number of posts Number of posts Vacancy rate % Number of posts 

the establishment

 
(Levels 1-2)

21 20 4.76 0

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5)

369 364 1.36 5

Highly skilled 
production  
(Levels 6-8)

252 238 5.56 3

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

297 265 10.77 5

Senior  Management 
(Levels 13-16) 

100 80 20.00 11

Total 1 039 967 6.93 24

TABLE  2.3 – Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, 31 March 2014 

Critical occupation Number of posts Number of posts Vacancy Rate % Number of posts 

the establishment

Educators (Level 9-12) 14 14 0.00 0

Total 14 14 0.00 0

Note: 

periods as may be required.  The Department also seconds highly skilled professionals from tertiary institutions 
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3. Job Evaluation

structure.  

TABLE 3.1 – Job Evaluation by salary band for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Salary band Number of 
posts

Number of 
jobs eval-

uated

% of posts 
evaluated 
by salary 

bands

Posts upgraded

Number % of  
posts 

evaluated

Number % of  
posts 

evaluated

 
(Levels 1-2)

21 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 369 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Highly skilled 
production  
(Levels 6-8)

252 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Highly skilled 
supervision  
(Levels 9-12)

297 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Senior Management 
Service Band A 
(Level 13)

75 91 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

 Senior Management 
Service Band B 
(Level 14)

18 32 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Senior Management 
Service Band C 
(Level 15)

6 8 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Senior Management 
Service Band D 
(Level 16)

1 1 100.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Total 1 039 132 12.7 0 0.00 0 0.00

to their posts being upgraded.   
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upgraded, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

African Indian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

 
1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Occupation Number of 
employees

Job evaluation 
level

Remuneration 
level

Reason for 
deviation

- 0 0 0 0

evaluation in 2013/14
0

Percentage of total employment 0

 
1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

African Indian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

4. Employment Changes

turnover rates by salary band (Table 4.1) and by critical occupations (Table 4.2). (These “critical occupations” 
should be the same as those listed in Table 2.3).
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TABLE 4.1 – Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Salary band Number of 
employees 
per band as 
on 1 April 

2013

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
Department

Terminations 
and transfers 

out of the 
Department

Turnover rate 
%

14 6 0 0.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 326 84 51 15.64

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 220 39 24 10.90

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 230 56 32 13.91

Senior Management Service Band A 
(Level 13) 

46 7 2 4.34

Senior Management Service Band B 
(Level 14) 

16 6 7 43.75

Senior Management Service Band C 
(Level 15)

4 0 0 0.00

Senior Management Service Band D 
(Level 16)

1 0 0 0.00

Total 857 198 116 13.53

TABLE 4.2 – Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupation Number of 
employees per 

occupation as on 
1 April 2013

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

Department

Terminations and 
transfers out of 
the Department

Turnover rate
%

Educators (Level  9-12) 14 0 2 14.28

Total 14 0 2 14.28

Termination Type Number % of total 

Death 3 2.59

Resignation 28 24.14

Transfers to other Public Service Departments 19 16.38

Expiry of contract 54 46.55

Employee initiated severance packages 0 0.00

Discharge due to ill health 0 0.00

Dismissal – misconduct 3 2.59

Retirement 9 7.75

Total 116 100
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TABLE 4.4 – Promotions by critical occupation

Occupation Employees 
as on 1 April 

2013

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary level 
promotions 

as a % of 
employees 

by 
occupation

Progressions 
to another 

salary level

Notch 
progressions 

as a % of 
employees by 

occupation

Educators (Level  9-12) 14 0 0.00 14 100.00

Total 14 0 0.00 14 100.00

TABLE 4.5 – Promotions by salary band

Salary band Employees 
as on 1 April 

2013 

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary bands 
promotions 

as a % of 
employees by 

salary level

Progressions 
to another 

salary level

Notch 
progressions 

as a % of 
employees by 
salary band

14 0 0.00 0 0.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 326 31 9.51 211 64.72

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8)

220 15 6.82 159 72.27

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

230 33 14.34 160 69.57

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-16)

67 2 2.99 63 94.02

Total 857 81 9.45 593 69.19
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5. Employment Equity 

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.  

occupational categories as on 31 March 2014

Occupational category 
(SASCO)

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Senior Managers 
(Level 13-16)

27 4 1 11 18 1 4 14 80

Educators and Middle 
Managers (Level 9-12)

112 4 6 27 90 1 3 22 265

Clerks, Machine Operators 
(Level 4-8)

171 5 0 8 252 8 3 34 481

Elementary occupations 
(Cleaners, Messengers, 
Food Services AIDS, 
Security) (Level 1-3)

75 1 0 0 65 0 0 0 141

Total 385 14 7 46 425 10 10 70 967

4 0 0 2 2 0 0 2 10

occupational bands as on 31 March 2014

Occupational band Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top Management 
(Level 15-16)

1 0 1 2 2 0 0 1 7

Senior Management 
(Level 13-14)

26 4 0 9 16 1 4 13 73

Educators and Middle 
Managers (Level 9-12)

112 4 6 27 90 1 3 22 265

Skilled  and 58 4 0 5 130 6 3 32 238

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making (Level 3-5)

182 1 0 3 174 2 0 2 364

decision making 
(Level 1-2)

6 1 0 0 13 0 0 0 20

Total 385 14 7 46 425 10 10 70 967



DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

143

TABLE 5.3- Recruitment for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational band Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top Management 
(Level 15-16)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 
(Level 13-14)

4 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 8

Educators and Middle 
Managers (Level 9-12)

9 0 0 3 5 0 0 1 18

Skilled and 1 0 0 0 5 1 0 0 7

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making (Level 3-5)

1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4

decision making 
(Level 1-2)

2 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 6

Total 17 0 1 4 19 1 0 1 43

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 5.4- Promotions for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational band Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top Management 
(Level 15-16)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 
(Level 13-14)

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Educators and Middle 
Managers (Level 9-12)

12 1 0 1 17 0 0 1 32

Skilled and 5 0 0 0 9 0 1 0 15

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making (Level 3-5)

8 0 0 1 23 0 0 0 32

decision making 
(Level 1-2)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 26 1 0 2 50 0 1 1 81

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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TABLE 5.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational band Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top Management  
(Level 15-16)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 
(Level 13-14)

2 0 0 1 6 0 0 0 9

Educators and Middle 
Managers (Level 9-12)

11 0 0 3 14 0 1 3 32

Skilled and 9 0 0 0 12 0 0 3 24

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making (Level 3-5)

25 0 0 0 26 0 0 0 51

decision making  
(Level 1-2)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 47 0 0 4 58 0 1 6 116

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 5.6- Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Type of disciplinary 
action

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Dismissal 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Total 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 6
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Occupational 
category

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Senior Managers  
(Level 13-16)

17 0 0 3 13 0 1 3 37

Educators and Middle 
Managers (Level 9-12)

8 0 1 4 15 2 1 5 36

 
(Level 4-8)

87 2 0 0 103 0 0 6 198

Elementary 
occupations (Cleaners, 
Messengers, Food 
Services AIDS, 
Security) (Level 1-3)

19 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 22

Total 131 2 1 7 134 2 2 14 293

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6. Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

as on 31 July 2013 (Table 6.1), reasons for not having concluded performance agreements (Table 6.2) and 
disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded performance agreements (Table 6.3).

TABLE 6.1 – Signing of performance agreements by SMS members as on 31 July 2013 

SMS Level Total number 
of funded SMS 
posts per level

Total number of 
SMS members 

per level

Total number 
of signed 

performance 
agreements per 

level

Signed 
performance 

agreements as % 
of total number of 
SMS members per 

level

Director-General 
(Level 16)

1 1 1 100.00

Deputy Director-
General (Level 15)

6 4 4 100.00

Chief Director 
(Level 14)

18 16 16 100.00

Director (Level 13) 75 46 46 100.00

Total 100 67 67 100.00

TABLE 6.2 – Reasons for not having concluded performance agreements for all SMS members as on  
31 July 2013

1. None
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agreements as on 31 July 2013

1. None

7. Filling of SMS posts

TABLE 7.1 – SMS posts information as on 31 March 2014 

SMS Level Total number 
of funded 

SMS posts 
per level

Total number 
of SMS 

per level

% of SMS 

per level

Total number 
of SMS 

posts vacant 
per level

% of SMS 
posts vacant 

per level

Director-General (Level 16) 1 1 100.00 0 0.00

Deputy Director-General 
(Level 15)

6 4 66.67 2 33.33

Chief Director (Level 14) 18 14 77.78 4 22.22

Director (Level 13) 75 61 81.33 14 18.67

Total 100 80 80.00 20 20.00

TABLE 7.2 – SMS posts information as on 30 September 2013

SMS Level Total 
number of 

funded SMS 
posts per 

level

Total 
number of 
SMS posts 

level

% of SMS 

per level

Total 
number of 
SMS posts 
vacant per 

level

% of SMS 
posts 

vacant per 
level

Director-General (Level 16) 1 1 100.00 0 0.00

Deputy Director-General 
(Level 15)

6 4 66.67 2 33.33

Chief Director (Level 14) 18 14 77.78 4 22.22

Director (Level 13) 75 49 65.33 26 34.67

Total 100 68 68.00 32 32.00
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Advertising Filling of posts

SMS Level Number of 
vacancies per 

level advertised 
in 6 months of 

becoming vacant

Number of 
vacancies per level 

after becoming 
vacant

Number of 
vacancies per 

12 months

Director-General (Level 16) 0 0 0

Deputy Director-General (Level 15) 2 0 0

Chief Director (Level 14) 1 1 2

Director (Level 13) 12 0 0

Total 15 1 2

:

1. None

1. None
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8.2) and critical occupations (Table 8.3).

Cost

Race Number of Total number 
of employees 

in group

% of total Average cost 
per employee 

(R‘000)

African

Male 120 385 31.17 1 312 10

Female 134 425 31.52 1 538 11

Indian

Male 3 7 42.86 67 22

Female 3 10 30.00 59 20

Coloured

Male 5 14 35.71 82 16

Female 2 10 20.00 18 9

White

Male 34 46 73.91 472 14

Female 20 70 28.57 585 29

Total 321 967 33.20 4 133 13

 
1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Salary band                       Cost

Total 
personnel 

expenditure 
for level 

Number of Number of 
employees

% of 
total 

salary 
bands

Total 
Cost 

Average 
cost per 

employee 

Total cost 
as a % of 
the total 

personnel 
expenditure

 
(Levels 1-2)

995 0 20 0.00 0 0 0.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 46 196 78 364 21.31 366 5 0.79

Highly skilled 
production (Levels 
6-8)

65 662 117 238 49.16 1 053 9 1.60

Highly skilled 
supervision (Levels 
9-12)

131 543 121 265 45.66 2 440 20 1.85

Total 244 396 316 887 35.63 3 859 12 1.58
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Service

currently available.

Salary band Cost

Total 
personnel 

expenditure 
for level 

Number of Number of 
employees

% of total 

band

Total cost Average 
cost per 

employee

Total cost 
as a % of 
the total 

personnel 
expenditure

 (Level 13-16) 77 174 5 80 6.25 274 55 0.36

Total 77 174 5 80 6.25 274 55 0.36

Salary band 1 April 2013 31 March 2014 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Level 13 0 0.00 1 50 1 50

Level 12 0 0.00 1 50 1 50

Total 0 0.00 2 100 2 100

Major occupation 1 April 2013 31 March 2014 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Educators 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Total 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
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10. Leave utilisation for the period 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

Salary band Total days % days 

medical 

Number of 
employees 

leave

% of total 
employees 

leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
cost 

Total 
number of 

medical 

(Levels 1-2)
337 57.27 106 10.96 3 73 193

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5)

2 593 76.51 336 34.76 7 971 1 984

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6-8)

 2 145 77.99 233 24.09 9 1 532 1 673

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

1 562 74.51 233 24.09 6 2 660 1 164 

Senior 
Management 
(Levels 13-16)

421 86.93 59 6.10 7 1 320 366

Total 7 058 76.22 967 100.00 7 6 556 5 380

TABLE 10.2 – Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 

Salary band Total days % days 

medical 

Number of 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave

% of total 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
cost 

Total 
number of 

medical 

(Levels 1-2)
67 100.00 3 20.00 22 25 67

Skilled (Levels 
3-5)

159 100.00 5 33.30 32 128 159

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6-8)

224 100.00 5 33.30 45 599 224

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

90 100.00 1 6.70 90 323 90

Senior 
Management 
(Levels 13-16)

22 100.00 1 6.70 22 52 22

Total 562 100.00 15 100.0 37 1 127 562
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PSCBC, requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of 
termination of service. 

TABLE 10.3 – Annual leave, 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

Salary band Average per 
employee

Number of 

1 570 79 20

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 8 568 24 364

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 5 352 23 238

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 6 210 23 265

Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 1 880 24 80

Total 23 580 24 967

TABLE 10.4 – Capped leave, 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

Salary band Total days of 
capped leave 

Average number 

per employee

Number of 

leave

0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 9 5 2

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 7 2 3

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 23 8 3

Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 11 6 2

Total 50 5 10

TABLE 10.5 – Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Reason Total amount Number of 
employees

Average 
payment per 

employee 
(R)

Capped leave payout on termination of service 13 1 13 000

Total 13 1 13 000
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11. HI  and AIDS and Health Promotion Programmes

(if any) 

None

Distribution of universal precautions

Condom distribution

provide the required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1. Has the Department designated a member of the 
SMS to implement the provisions contained in Part 
VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 
2001? If so, provide her/his name and position.

yes Mr B Masuku HRMD and Labour 
Relations

2. Does the Department have a dedicated unit or has 

in this task and the annual budget that is available for 
this purpose.  

yes

3. Has the Department introduced an Employee 
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for your 
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services 
of this Programme. 

yes
and personal problems.

4. Has the Department established (a) committee(s) 
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of 
the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please 
provide the names of the members of the committee 
and the stakeholder(s) that they represent.  

yes Each Branch is represented in the 
committee.

and practices to ensure that these do not unfairly 
discriminate against employees on the basis of 
their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/

yes Leave Policy

Employee Assistance Programme 
Policy

Recruitment Policy

HIV and AIDS and TB Management 
Policy 

6. Has the Department introduced measures to protect 
HIV-positive employees or those perceived to be 
HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the key 
elements of these measures. 

yes HIV and AIDS Workplace 
programme

Condom distributions
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Question Yes No Details, if yes

7. Does the Department encourage its employees to 
undergo Voluntary Counseling and Testing? If so, list 
the results that you have achieved. 

yes Through HCT campaign the uptake 

able to live a healthy life.

8. Has the Department developed measures/indicators 
to monitor and evaluate the impact of its health 
promotion programme? If so, list these measures/
indicators.

yes Training in First Aid Programmes

Distribution of condoms

Protective gloves distribution

Information session

Distribution of booklets and 
pamphlets on HIV and AIDS

i.e. soccer and netball 

12. Labour Relations

TABLE 12.1 - Collective agreements, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Subject matter Date

None -

Outcome of disciplinary 
hearings

Number % of total

Correctional counselling 0 0.00

0 0.00

6 46.00

2 15.00

1 8.00

Fine 0 0.00

Demotion 0 0.00

Dismissal 3 23.00

Not guilty 0 0.00

1 8.00

Total 13 100.00
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TABLE 12.3 - Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2013 to  
31 March 2014

Type of misconduct Number % of total

Mismanagement of funds 8 100.00

Negligently cause loss of state property 0 0.00

Total 8 100.00

TABLE 12.4 - Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Number % of total

Number of grievances resolved 15 58.00

Number of grievances not resolved 11 42.00

Total number of grievances lodged 26 100.00

Number % of total

Number of disputes upheld 4 33.34

Number of disputes dismissed 1 8.33

Number of dispute outstanding 7 58.33

Total number of disputes lodged 12 100.00

0

0

0

TABLE 12.7 - Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Number of people suspended 0

0

Average number of days suspended 0

0
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 

as at  
1 April 2013 

Number of 
employees 

training

and other short 
courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total 
number of 
courses

Senior Managers 
(Level 13-16)

Female 33 17 Job Evaluation 
Panel

Monitoring and 
Evaluation

2

Male 34 20

Educators and 
Middle Managers 
(Level 9-12)

Female 107 23 Mentoring and 
Coaching 

Advanced 
Management 
Development

Emerging 
Management 
Development

Security Graded 
Training

Share Point

5

Male 123 13

and Machine 
Operators 
(Level 3-8)

Female 247 109 Work Study

Mentoring and 
Coaching

Job Evaluation 
Analysis

Computer Training

BAS and Logis

5

Male 156 90

Elementary 
occupations 
(Cleaners, 
Messengers, Food 
Services AIDS, 
Security, Interns) 
(Level 1-2)

Female 71 3

Male 86 19 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Security Grades 
Teaching

2

Sub Total Female 458 152

Male 399 142

Total 857 294 14
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TABLE 13.2 - Training provided 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 

2013 
Number of 
employees 

training

and other short 
courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Senior Managers 
(Level 13-16)

Female 33 17 Job Evaluation 
Panel

Monitoring and 
Evaluation

2

Male 34 20

Educators and 
Middle Managers 
(Level 9-12)

Female 107 23 Mentoring and 
Coaching 

Advanced 
Management 
Development

Emerging 
Management 
Development

Security Graded 
Training

Share Point

5

Male 123 13

and Machine 
Operators  
(Level 3-8) 

Female 247 109 Work Study

Mentoring and 
Coaching

Job Evaluation 
Analysis

Computer Training

BAS and Logis

5

Male 156 90

Elementary 
occupations 
(Cleaners, 
Messengers, Food 
Services AIDS, 
Security, Interns) 
(Level 1-2)

Female 71 3

Male 86 19 Occupational 
Health and Safety

Security Grades 
Training

2

Sub total Female 458 152

Male 399 142

Total 857 294 14
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14. Injury on duty

TABLE 14.1 - Injury on duty, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 4 100.00

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0.00

Permanent Disablement 0 0.00

Fatal 0 0.00

Total 4 100.00

section 3(3)(c ) of the Public Service Act, 1994, as amended, issued a determination on the introduction of an 
employee initiated severance package (EISP) for employees.   The procedure relevant to the granting of an EISP 

 
1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014.

Salary band Number of 
applications 

received

Number of 
applications 
referred to 
the MPSA

Number of 
applications 
supported 
by MPSA

Number of 

approved by 
Department

0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0

Senior Management  (Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

16. Utilisation of Consultants

TABLE 16.1 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2013 
to 31 March 2014

Note:  
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Total number of 
consultants that 

project

Duration:

months

Contract value 
in Rand 

Request for service providers to perform internal 
audit functions for the DHET and the NSF for a 
period of one year

Ernst & Young 
Advisory Services 
(Pty) Ltd

20 Consultants

14/12/2012 
13/11/2013

4 488 750

Request to appoint a service provider to provide a 
central application call centre for DHET for a period 
of four to six months

I-Choice Call 
Centre

60 Consultants

25/11/2013 
31/03/2014

5 029 144

TABLE 16.2 - Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds

Project title Total number of 
consultants that 

project

Duration:

months

Donor and 
Contract value 

in Rand

Request for proposal to manage funds for the 

of Department of Higher Education and Training

Centre for 
Education Policy 
Development 

5 Consultants

05/06/2012 to 
04/06/2013

NSF Donor

Support to DHET: Skills Development Branch
Advisory

1 Consultant

01/05/2013 to 
30/04/2014

NSF Donor

1 137 847

National Career Advice Portal (NCAP)
Independant 
Research 
Services

2 Consultants

671 Days 534 149

Appointment of a service provider to test and further 
develop the National Career Advice Portal system 
(Phase 1) to enable supplementary development 
of and the inclusion of additional modules to the 
system (Phase 2) 

Praxis Computing

4 Consultants
02/01/2014 to 
31/03/2014

752 764

Appointment of a service provider to assist the 

Schedule 3A Public Entity. 

Ernst & Young 
Advisory Services 
(Pty) Ltd

52 Consultants

01/03/2014 to 
28/02/2014

30 838 868

Backup, Archiving & Recovery Solution Sithabile 
Technology 
Services

01/03/ 2014 to  
30 /06/ 2014

1 883 306

TABLE 16.3 - Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically 
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)

Project title
by HDI groups

Percentage 
management by HDI 

groups

Number of Consultants 
from HDI groups that 

None
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Members and Attendance

Name of member Number of meetings attended

Prof. DP van der Nest 5

Ms S Padayachy 4

Mr S Makhubu 5

Audit Committee Responsibility

Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1. The Audit Committee also reports that it has 
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its committee charter, has conducted its affairs in compliance 

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and 

and the Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA) assures the Audit Committee and management that the internal 
controls are adequate and effective.  This is achieved by means of evaluating the effectiveness regarding the 

to the controls and processes.

controling the generation, collation and reporting of performance information. This continues to be an area of 
concern to the Audit Committee.

The quality of in-year management and monthly/quarterly reports 
submitted in terms of the PFMA
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Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has

the AGSA.

Internal audit

the audit committee.

embedded in the management processes of the Department.

Auditor-General South Africa

issues.

Conclusion

for the year and to the team from the AGSA for the value they continue to add to the Department. The Audit 

external and internal audit.

Prof D.P. van der Nest
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 1 August 2014
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R34 322.391 million. This included R22 388.767 million for Higher Education Institutions (HEIs) and R5 769.405 

Further Education and Training (FET) college personnel.
11 509

2012/13 2013/14 Increase/ 
(Decrease)

Compensation of employees 360 434 398 450 38 016
Departmental operations 142 775 150 031 7 256
Departmental earmarked funds 24 896 40 162 15 266
Subsidies to HEIs 20 902 779 22 388 767 1 485 988
NSFAS 5 195 661 5 769 405 573 744
Subsidies to public entities 106 068 113 036 6 968
Conditional grants to the provinces for FET colleges 4 844 607 2 454 188 (2 390 419)
Subsidies to FET colleges - 3 013 189 3 013 189
Other transfers 5 180 4 741 (439)
Total expenditure 31 582 400 34 331 969 2 749 569

2012/13 2013/14
Compensation of employees 2 640 453
Departmental operations 1 003 1 318
Departmental earmarked funds 3 4
Subsidies to HEIs 81 -
Other transfers 24 156
Total savings 3 751 1 931
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2012/13 2013/14
Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs) 9 355 595 9 673 818
National Skills Fund 2 338 898 2 416 368
Total expenditure 11 694 493 12 090 186

Important policy decisions and strategic issues

and training system and outlines policy directions to develop the country and improve the economic, social and 
cultural life of its people. Some of the key principles that are addressed in the White Paper include:

Strengthening and expanding the Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) colleges.

that are currently funded through Public Adult Learning Centres in order to expand vocational, skills 
development and non-formal programmes.

Creating a post-school distance education landscape based on an open system.

for public comment. The Regulations for the Establishment of a National Institute for the Humanities and Social 

Cabinet approved the development of a Career Development Services Policy and implementation plan in January 
Concept Framework for an Open Learning System in Post-school Education and Training in South Africa

and the National N Diploma delegated to it by the Quality Council for Trades and Occupations in 2012. The 

colleges.
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In response to concerns raised by Umalusi as the quality assuror regarding the legitimacy and the quality of the 
site-based assessment tasks set and administered at site level, the Department had to expand the monitoring 

exit

standard and integrity of the marking process.

190/1 question papers in each trimester examination cycle, the Department revised the delivery model by Skynet 

daily delivery of papers the afternoon before the examination.

Audit panels had to be convened per Engineering Studies trimester examination cycle yet again during this 

With regards to Adult Education and Training, a draft Policy on Community Education and Training Colleges 

A Résumé of subjects for 
the Senior Certi cate, Report 550 (2014/7)

the development of College Academic Performance Improvement Plans took place in 2013/14. Furthermore, 

providing a coordinated voice from the college sector on pertinent policy issues on the Post-school Education and 
Training system. The launch of the South African Further Education and Training Student Association in 2013/14 

Through an external audit of the bursary management and administration processes in selected TVET colleges, 

through voluntary counselling, testing and treatment services. This initiative has three additional pillars on gender 
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priorities and to approve trade test regulations. The National Skills Authority also undertook the responsibility to 
develop the annual implementation report for the National Skills Development Strategy.

The Grant Regulations came into effect on 1 April 2013 and a Ministerial Task Team Report on the SETA 

The advocacy programme called the ‘2013 Year of Artisan’

Decade of the Artisan
primarily at advocating the need for young people to consider technical and vocational programmes at TVET 
colleges and artisan development in particular as a career of choice, as opposed to only a university based 
career.

the Human Resource Development Council, the Minister approved a Policy for a Generic National Artisan 

the country a single guaranteed funding model for all artisan trades applicable to all sectors including a single, 
simple artisan learner administration and grant disbursement system. All artisan learners registered on a SETA 
registered artisan learning programme, receive the same grant value payable in four tranches over the length of 

artisan development system. The SETAs, the National Skills Fund and all other funding agencies are aligning 
their funding policies to include the Artisan Learner Funding Policy.

Committee on the Budget to be implemented by National Treasury and the Department of Performance Monitoring 

analysis of all national artisan development activities and costs attached to such activities has been completed 
and a series of national artisan development scenarios developed that are aligned to the National Development 

completed during the year

in February 2014. The Minister also established a National Institute for Humanities and Social Sciences and 
appointed a board to operationalise the institute. The report of the Joint Technical Task Team to provide advice 

International Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO), ensured the successful participation of South Africa in the 
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2014 BRICS Think Tanks Council (BTTC) meeting and the 2014 BRICS Academic Forum held in Rio de Janeiro, 

including an academic forum in July 2013 to interrogate the draft BRICS vision document and to develop it 

Towards a Long-
Term Strategy for BRICS: Recommendations by BTTC

resource centres.

The National Career Advice Portal (NCAP) has been developed as an integrated education and training career 
development information system and is live ( ). The modules that have been 

universities. Thousands of persons are reached through radio, exhibitions, telephone help lines, and Web Portal 

Career development services protocols have been signed by the National Youth Development Agency, Finance 
and Accounting Services SETA, Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services SETA, Chemical Industries 

Concept Document: Open Learning in Post-school Education and Training
Concept 

Framework for an Open Learning System in Post-school Education and Training in South Africa
as a result.

Malaysia and Saudi Arabia.



168

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014
REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

In order to expand equitable access to and success in the higher education system, infrastructure grants 
amounting to R2 billion, teaching development grants amounting to R576 million and foundation provision grants 

reporting year commencing on 1 January 2015.

centre managers for both centralised and decentralised national marking centres and full implementation of 

Registration of candidates

Setting and moderation of question papers and site-based assessment tasks

Printing, packing and distribution of question papers for the TVET college sector

Marking of all scripts for the TVET college sector

Capturing of marks for the TVET college candidates

Monitoring of the conduct of examinations and site-based assessment and marking sessions

Standardisation of all examination marks as per the quality assuror directives
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assessment regulations.

administration.

TVET colleges and to a lesser extent Sector Education and Training Authorities and employers in implementing 

During 2013, the Department successfully convened a National Skills Conference attended by various delegates 

national and provincial departments, and post-school education and training providers. The purpose of the 

III by considering progress made on the recommendations and outcomes of the 2011 Skills Conference, and to 
identify blockages and challenges impacting on the implementation of the NSDS III.

implemented at provincial level.

completion in March 2015.

Trade Certi cate

processes as the artisan trade assessment quality partner of the Quality Council for Trades and Occupations. 

and greatly enhances the employability, mobility and portability of artisan competencies across sectors in the 
economy.
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importance and requires relevant and necessary security features.

The Department implemented the internship programme since its establishment and adopted it as one of its 

Spending trends

2012/13 2013/14

Under-
expenditure

Percentage Under-
expenditure

Percentage

1. Administration 496 685
2. Human Resource Development, Planning and 

Monitoring Evaluation
416 292

3. University Education 557 228
4. Vocational and Continuing Education and 

Training
2 211 418

5. Skills Development 71 308
Total 3 751 0.01% 1 931 0.00%

Factors that contributed to under-expenditure include savings realised on funds provided for posts on the staff 

concomitant savings that resulted from this, Legal and Legislative fees for claims not received for court cases as 

budget.
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For more information on under-expenditure or savings, please refer to the Notes to the Appropriation Statement.

Virement

Shifted from Shifted to Amount
2: Human Resource Development, Planning and Monitoring Co-ordination 1: Administration 3 613
3: University Education 1: Administration 1 233
4: Vocational and Continuing Education and Training 1: Administration 4 202
5: Skills Development 1: Administration 5 022

costs for the International Attaché, Communications, Personnel Administration, Audit Fees, SITA accounts and 
Property Management in Programme 1: Administration, and examiner and moderator claims in Programme 4: 

on compensation of employees on some of the programmes.

reported to National Treasury and the Minister.

2. Services rendered by the Department

2.1 Services rendered

HEIs, revenue generated by the Institute for the National Development of Learnerships, Employment Skills and 
Labour Assessments from fees for trade tests, boarding and rentals. The total revenue collected in this regard for 

2.2 Tariff policy

National Technical Examinations

Tariff in R

Examination fees
a) 20.00
b) Enrolment fees per instructional offering Report 191 (N4 – N6) 27.00
c) 51.00
d) 81.00
e) 14.50
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f) Reissuing of/changes to/amendments of statement results 19.00
g) 90.00

h) 90.00

i) 15.00
20.00

k) 30.00
l) 15.00
m) Transfer of examination entries 25.00
n) 50.00
o) Postage

Africa 117.00
Overseas (diplomatic bag) 140.00

200.00
p) 15.00
q) 35.00
r) Late entry or amendments penalty 21.00
s) Syllabuses (only applicable to examining bodies that supplied syllabuses to other 

examining bodies)
1.00

Private Further Education and Training Colleges

Tariff in R
a) Application for registration 500.00
b) Amendments 500.00

Private Higher Education Institutions

Tariff in R
a) Application for registration 500.00
b) Amendments 500.00
c) Conversions 500.00

Trade test tariffs

Government Gazette No. 343 of 23 March 2009.

2.3 Free services

None

2.4 Inventories

The inventories on hand at year end amounted to R185 141 (R296 898 on 31 March 2013).
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3. Capacity constraints

3 of 2012 led to increased pressure in the Department particularly for the human resource function as the 
Department has to manage recruitment processes for TVET colleges. The funding of these processes placed the 

capacity constraints.

shortfall of the required headcount. Branches heavily relied on interns and contract appointments to execute the 

service provider for LAN, Server and Desktop Support Maintenance assisted the Department.

to be overstretched.

The Vocational and Continuing Education and Training Branch experienced capacity constraints to undertake 

development of the Costing Model to cost programmes offered at TVET and CET colleges. Some Directorates 

and learning in colleges. The Branch also has not been in a position to monitor the delivery of AET programmes 

examination processes. The fact that the examination function is currently located at the premises of the 

processes key to the national examinations function. With the relocation of this function to another premise, the 

the mandate it is expected to deliver. This has led to the serious compromise of monitoring and quality assurance 

national examinations and the streamlining of the budget required to do so. Until such time that the TVET college 

daily before an examination.
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The most critical constraint faced by National Artisan Development located at Indlela is the lack of sustainable 

Additionally the conversion of posts currently funded by the National Skills Fund to permanent posts for the 
various contract staff that currently run the various units linked to national artisan development, are included 
in the National Artisan Moderating Body and the Artisan Recognition of Prior Learning systems and processes. 

4. Utilisation of donor funds

Development Programme (RDP) Fund. The balance of the funds available to the Department in the RDP Fund, 

The utilisation of R141 million over three years, from the European Union Primary Education Sector 

met and exceeded. The activities include research, programme development and materials development 
for Foundation Phase teacher education, post-graduate scholarships, bursaries for initial teacher 

its products including teacher education learning support materials, video products and research outputs.

The European Union Dialogue facility approved a proposal for research on skills planning and provided 
funding of approximately R400 000. The Terms of Reference to commission service providers have been 
prepared and the European Union is in the process of procurement.

services provided to students in selected TVET colleges. Funds are allocated directly to these TVET 

Netherlands government strengthened the Management Information Systems and Information 

of a Career Development Services policy and implementation plan in January 2014. Social cluster 
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the development of National Career Development Service Policy across all spheres of Government. 

SETA, Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services SETA, Chemical Industries SETA and the South 

Competency Framework for Career Development Practitioners

 a

capacity of selected TVET colleges in providing enhanced labour market outcomes for students. The 

colleges.

Chinese Government: 22 students received scholarships from the Chinese government to study at 
Chinese universities. 

Russian Government: Four students received Russian State Scholarships to study marine and aeronautical 
engineering in Russia.

5. Public entities 

5.1 Council on Higher Education (CHE)

The CHE is an independent statutory body, established in terms of the Higher Education Act, 1997. The passing 

achievement of South African higher education policy and goals, to a quality council for higher education. This 
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provided comments and input on the development of the Draft Regulations for the establishment of a 
National Institute for the Humanities and Social Sciences

provided comments and inputs on the development of the Distance Education Policy for the Department

services on behalf of foreign institutions not registered in South Africa

provided input and advice on the Higher Education and Training Information Policy

provided input on the disestablishment of the National Institute for Higher Education in Mpumalanga and 
the Northern Cape

Performance indicators to assess the state of the higher education 
system

The 20 year 
review of higher education The re ections on academic leadership

the CHE carry out activities to build support for and facilitate understanding of the Quality Enhancement 

 -

 -

 -

 -

  

5.2 National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)

administering loans and bursaries and allocating these to eligible students, developing criteria and conditions for 

Training, raising funds, recovering loans, maintaining and analysing a database, undertaking research aimed at 

funds, money repayable on study loans and interest on investments.
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NQF, including ensuring access, quality, redress and development for all learners through an integrated national 

2013/14.

 -

 -

 -

 -

 - Investigation of comparative admission practices, among professional bodies.

This advice resulted in the Minister publishing an amendment to the determination of three Sub-

Finalised the draft national policy and criteria for assessment and the draft national policy for credit 

a Professional Body and Registering a Professional Designation for purposes of the NQF Act, the Policy 

for the Implementation of the Recognition of Prior Learning, complete the full suite of NQF policies that 

Recognised 17 professional bodies and registered 44 professional designations.

 -

monitored and bi-monthly reports submitted to the DHET-CAS Steering Committee, the CAS Board 

2014

 -

 - The Mandela Day Career Festival

 - The Central Applications Clearing House (CACH) Campaign.

Helpline.



178

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014
REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

practice, coordination and providing RPL toolkits.

and administering the fund. The Department transferred an amount of R2 416.368 million from direct charges to 
the NSF during 2013/14.

funded by the NSF.

 

 

management also assisted the NSF to increase its commitments to an additional R2.9 billion against future 
income, over and above commitments made against accumulated reserves.

generations to come.

5.5 Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs)

skills plans aimed at developing the appropriate skills, to develop and register learning programmes and to 
distribute skills development levy funds. The SETAs meet the NSDS targets by means of a legislated service 

also calculated in annual terms. The Department transferred an amount of R9 673.818 million from direct charges 
to SETAs during 2013/14.
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in order to develop appropriate skills, register learning programmes and distribute skills development levies as 
required.

Total unemployed entered: learnerships, internships, bursaries and skills programmes – 60 101 learners 
funded

universities partnerships, AET programmes, co-operatives supported and small business supported – 

Total number of NGOs, NLPEs and CBOs supported and career guidance provided – 7 329.

5.6 The Quality Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO)

2013/14.

During 2013/14:

public comment as part of the evaluation process.

process to commence. The Assessment and Examinations division of the Department conducted site 
visits and started issuing examination centre numbers to the QCTO accredited private providers offering 

The QCTO delegated the Accreditation function to the Association of Private Providers of Education, 
Training and Development (APPETD). 
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organisation.

The Examinations and Assessment Chief Directorate from the Department of Higher Education and 

and a decision taken to release the results as fair, credible and valid. Some TVET colleges both private 
and public still experience challenges of irregularities in the conduct and management of examinations. 

6. Other organisations that receive transfer payments from the 
Department

6.1 Higher Education Institutions (HEIs)

to ensure the sustainability, affordability and responsiveness of the higher education system, and to enable it to 

transferred to HEIs.

6.2 Sector Education and Training Authority (SETA)

transferred by the Department for its skills contribution.

6.3 FET Colleges

6.4 Other transfers

South Africa as member country.

India-Brazil-South Africa

Education South Africa (HESA) (Treasury approval reference number 9/4/4/4/13 dated 9 December 2011).

Higher Education South Africa (HESA)
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6.5 Conditional grants to Provincial Education Departments (PEDs)

 Conditional grant  Total allocation Amount transferred Total amount spent 
by PEDs

% spent on 
allocation

FET colleges 2 454 188 2 454 188 2 422 614 98.7

Total 2 454 188 2 454 188 2 422 614 98.7

6.5.1 Further Education and Training (FET) Colleges

FET colleges to the Department of Higher Education and Training.

secondment of provincial education department staff to the Department of Higher Education and Training

implementation of the funding norms and standards for FET colleges

monitor the support of FET colleges by provincial education departments 

and Training.

The Post-Provisioning Model (PPM) has been drafted and presented to the South African Institute of 

nine FET colleges. 

is managed by the Provincial Education Departments (PEDs). With the function shift processes, this 
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the progress and implementation of the improvement plans at the campus level.

6.5.2 Compliance with the Division of Revenue Act (DoRA)

to the Department not later than 30 days after the end of each quarter. The submission of quarterly reports by 

Portfolio Committee on Higher Education and the National Council of Provinces after consolidating all provincial 

6.5.3 Performance evaluation of conditional grants

programmes that are funded or partially funded by the allocation, and submit the evaluation report to the National 

7. Public-Private Partnerships (PPPs)
None.

8. Corporate governance arrangements

Department. The Risk Management Policy, the Risk Management Strategy including an implementation plan 
and the Risk Management Committee Charter, have been developed. The Risk Management Committee for 
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8.2 Internal Audit Unit

disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of governance, risk management and control 
processes.

plan, the Department made use of consultants to provide assistance.

8.3 The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is in place and functions effectively, as required by the Treasury Regulations and the PFMA. 

provides secretarial services.

annual basis. Furthermore, all employees of the Department are compelled to request permission from the 

them. All senior managers signed performance agreements.

8.5 Implementation of a Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct for Public Servants, developed by the Public Service Commission to promote a high 

for the Public Service.

8.6 Safety, health and environmental issues facing the Department
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8.7 Other governance structures
Bid Committees

 

A minimum of three members constitute the BSC appointed by the relevant Deputy Director-

and the Supply Chain Management units form part of the Committee. The role of the Committee 

 Bid Evaluation Committee (BEC)

A minimum of three members constitute the BEC appointed by the relevant Deputy Director-

the Supply Chain Management units form part of the Committee. The Committee is responsible for 
evaluation of bids submitted, according to published evaluation criteria. The BEC submits a report 

 The Bid Adjudication Committee (BAC)

Chain Management unit also forms part of the committee. The Director-General appointed alternate 

make recommendations on these to the Director-General for approval before advertising, 

the recommendations of the Bid Evaluation Committee (BEC) and recommends to the Director-

Regulations. The Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a month, but ad hoc meetings are 
arranged if necessary.

The meetings are presided over by chairpersons. The members of the committees do not serve on more 
than one bid committee.

Information Technology Steering Committee (ITSC)
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as government policies and standards. The ITSC regulates the acquisition, deployment, use and disposal 
of all Information and Communications Technology, Information Systems and Information Management 
Systems (ICT/IS/IM) in the Department. This is done in terms of standardisation, need, quantity required, 

ICT, supports the strategic goals of the Department.

9. Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued
None.

None.

evaluations for the proposed regional organisational structure in the Department. With the migration of TVET 

Implementation of a backup and archiving solution 

Implementation of the Ministerial Committee reports on the Recognition of Prior Learning and Articulation 
– R4 million

Management of the function shift of TVET and AET from provinces to the Department – R40 million.

Data Centre Establishment to host all applications of the Department centrally from the Data Centre at 
SITA – R6.5 million from the National Skills Fund.

Implementation of Cloud Call Centre – R3 million from the European Union.

Career Guidance Services – R43 million from the National Skills Fund and R99 million from the European 
Union.

Development of an open learning system for post-school education and training – R53 million from the 
European Union.

11. Asset management
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requirements

Reform Milestones

the asset register and the basic accounting system.

Reform

12. Events after the reporting date
National Career Advice Portal. Note 28 of the Annual Financial Statements refers.

included under Part B: Performance Information of this report.

14. Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) resolutions
None.  

None.

16. Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury
None.

17. Interim Financial Statements
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18. Other
None.

19. Approval

Mr GF Qonde
Director-General
Date: 30 May 2014
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON VOTE NO. 17: 
DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. 

policies and other explanatory information. 

2. 

of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such 

3. 

general notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

5. 
audit opinion.

Opinion

6. 

National Treasury and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter
7. 
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8. 

be determined.

Additional matter 
9. 

Unaudited supplementary schedules

10. 
and is presented as additional information. These schedules have not been audited and, accordingly, I 
do not express an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
11. 

to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or 
conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

12. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

department for the year ended 31 March 2014:

Programme 3: university education, on pages 70 to 85

Programme 4: vocational and continuing education and training, on pages 89 to 101

Programme 5: skills development, on pages 105 to 107

13. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

14. 

Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

15. 
accurate and complete.

Programme 3: university education

Usefulness and reliability of reported performance information

16. 
for the selected programme.
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Programme 4: vocational and continuing education and training
Usefulness of reported performance information

17. 
selected programme.

Reliability of reported performance information
18. 

19. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 
information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned 

to inadequate performance management to hold staff accountable for adequately addressing internal 

Usefulness of reported performance information

20. 
selected programme.

Reliability of reported performance information
21. 

22. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 
information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned 

Additional matters
23. 

Achievement of planned targets

24. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 70 to 85, 89 to 101 and 105 to 107 for information 
on the achievement of the planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the 

programmes reported in paragraphs 19 and 22 of this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements

25. 
performance information for programme 3: university education, programme 4: vocational and continuing 
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education and training, and programme 5: skills development. As management subsequently corrected 

information.

26. 

Strategic planning and performance management

27. 

PFMA. The department did not have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 
information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned 

28. 

audit opinion. 

Human resource management and compensation

29. 
applications, in contravention of public service regulation 1/VII/D.8.

30. 
C.1A.2.

Procurement and contract management

31. 
permission from the relevant authority, as required by Section 30 of the Public Service Act of South Africa, 
1994 (Act No. 103 of 1994).

Internal control

32. 

Leadership

33. 

34. 

35. Programme-level policies and procedures for collating, recording and verifying reporting on the 

therefore not implemented during the year. 
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36. 

37. 
entities due to funding and human resource capacity constraints. As a result, the reliability of reported 
achievements by its entities and institutions consolidated into the achievements reported by the 

Financial and performance management

38. 
by reliable information.

39. The branches did not perform the required checks to ensure the validity, accuracy and completeness 
of the reported achievements in the quarterly and annual performance reports for most of the reported 

40. 

management.

OTHER REPORTS
Performance audits
41. 

Investigations
42. 

months. 

43. 

Pretoria
31 July 2014
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after 
Virement):

statement of conditional grants paid to provinces and Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

(after Virement):

Statements.

the Annual Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after 
Virement):

4.1 Per programme:

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

%

Administration 203 729 203 044 685 0.34

Human Resource Development, 
Planning and Monitoring Coordination

43 827 43 535 292 0.67

University Education 28 299 507 28 299 279 228 0.00

Vocational and Continuing Education 
and Training

5 686 806 5 686 388 418 0.01

100 031 99 723 308 0.31

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

%
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 398 903 398 450 453 0.11
Goods and services 178 844 178 134 710 0.40

Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities 2 454 188 2 454 188 - 0.00
Departmental agencies and accounts 17 972 792 17 972 736 56 0.00
Higher education institutions 22 388 767 22 388 767 - 0.00
Foreign governments and international 
organisations

2 917 2 927 (10) (0.34)

3 020 189 3 020 189 - 0.00
Households 1 815 1 705 110 6.06

Payments for capital assets
Machinery and equipment 5 636 5 032 604 10.72
Intangible assets 35 27 8 22.86

Foreign governments and international organisations: Overspending is due mainly to further foreign payment 

obtained. Machinery and equipment: Under-spending is due mainly to cost cutting measures put in place on 
computer equipment in examination function to ensure that the vote does not overspend. Intangible assets: 
Under-spending is due mainly to cost cutting measures including the approval of all orders by the Chief Financial 

4.3 Per conditional grant:

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

%

Higher Education and Training

Further Education and Training Colleges 
Grant

2 454 188 2 454 188 - 0.00

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
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2013/14 2012/13
Note

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 34 333 900 31 586 151
Statutory appropriation 2 12 090 186 11 694 493
Departmental revenue 3 11 880 10 913
Aid assistance 4 5 433 883

TOTAL REVENUE 46 441 399 43 292 440

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 5 398 450 360 434
Goods and services 6 178 134 157 184
Aid assistance 4 1 155 -
Total current expenditure 577 739 517 618

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 8 45 840 512 42 753 787
Aid assistance 4 1 147 883
Total transfers and subsidies 45 841 659 42 754 670

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible capital assets 9 5 032 5 455

9 27 -
Total expenditure for capital assets 5 059 5 455

7 - 33

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 46 424 457 43 277 776

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 16 942 14 664

Reconciliation of Net Surplus for the year
Voted Funds 1 931 3 751

Annual appropriation 1 931 3 751
Departmental revenue and NRF receipts 15 11 880 10 913
Aid assistance 4 3 131 -
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 16 942 14 664

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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2013/14 2012/13
Note

ASSETS

Current Assets 236 614 160 392
Cash and cash equivalents 10 6 167 8 812
Prepayments and advances 11 13 214 8 254
Receivables 12 214 942 141 197
Loans 13 2 291 2 129

Non-Current Assets 21 956 24 247
Loans 13 21 956 24 247

TOTAL ASSETS 258 570 184 639

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 233 941 157 876
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 14 1 931 3 721
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 15 196 557
Bank overdraft 16  163 271 153 230
Payables 17 65 412 368
Aid assistance repayable 4 3 131 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 233 941 157 876

NET ASSETS 24 629 26 763

Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve

Recoverable revenue

24 247

382

26 376

387

TOTAL 24 629 26 763

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

as at 31 March 2014
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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2013/14 2012/13

Note
Capitalisation Reserves
Opening balance 26 376 28 431
Transfers:

Other movements (2 129) (2 055)
Closing balance 24 247 26 376

Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 387 308
Transfers: (5) 79

Debts recovered (including in departmental receipts) (265) (62)
Debts raised 260 141

Closing balance 382 387

TOTAL 24 629 26 763

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
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2013/14 2012/13

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 46 441 399 43 292 410

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 34 333 900 31 586 121
Statutory appropriated funds received 2 12 090 186 11 694 493
Departmental revenue received 3 8 506 7 455
Interest received 3.2 3 374 3 458
Aid assistance received 4 5 433 883

(13 661) (88 958)
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (15 962) (98 729)
Current payments (577 739) (517 618)

- (33)
Transfers and subsidies paid (45 841 659) (42 754 670)

18 (7 622) (167 598)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 9 (5 059) (5 455)
(Increase)/ decrease in loans 2 129 2 055

(2 930) (3 400)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (decrease) in net assets (2 134) (1 976)

(2 134) (1 976)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (12 686) (172 974)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (144 418) 28 556

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 19 (157 104) (144 418)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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assessments and estimates in preparing the annual Financial Statements. These are based on the best 
information available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of 

(PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the 
PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act.

1 Basis of preparation 

2 Going concern 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 Presentation currency

currency of the Department.

4 Rounding 

5 Foreign currency translation

exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6

7 Revenue

7.1 Appropriated funds

fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date the 

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date 
is recognised as a payable / receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.

7.2 Departmental revenue 

the Statement of Financial Position.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES



214

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue 
Accruals in respect of Departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the 

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from 
collecting agents.

8 Expenditure

8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1

8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the Department in respect of current employees are recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

households in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

8.2 Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital 
assets) is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment. The expense 

8.3 Accrued expenditure payable

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.

8.4 Leases

8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in 
the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements.

8.4.2 Finance leases 

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the 
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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9 Aid Assistance

9.1 Aid assistance received

In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the annexure to the Financial Statements on the date of receipt 
and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are 
required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the Statement of Financial Position.

9.2 Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment. 
Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the 
Statement of Financial Position.

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11 Prepayments and advances

receives or disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

provided.

12 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus accrued 

13

expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements.

14 Payables

Loans and payables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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15 Capital Assets

15.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost.  
Immovable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at 
the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined accurately, the immovable capital 

the fair value is used.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.

impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of 

15.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost. Movable 
capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of 
acquisition.

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined accurately, the movable capital 

measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the 

15.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost. Intangible assets 
acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined accurately, the intangible capital assets are 

at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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16 Provisions and Contingents

16.1 Provisions

the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the 
best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

16.2 Contingent liabilities

reliably.

16.3 Contingent assets

16.4 Commitments 

arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the 

17 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position until such time as the 
expenditure is either:

or

appropriation in the Statement of Financial Performance; or

transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expen

18

resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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19 Irregular expenditure

recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, 

transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and 

20 Changes in accounting estimates

None.

21 Prior period errors

None.

22 Non-adjusting events after the reporting date

None.

23 Agent-Principal arrangements

None.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Annual Appropriation
1.1 Annual Appropriation

2013/14

Final 
Appropriation

Actual Funds 
Received

Funds not 
requested/ 

not received

Appropriation 
Received 

2012/13
Programmes
Administration 203 729 203 729 - 172 151
Human Resource Development, 
Planning and Monitoring 
Coordination 43 827 43 827 - 43 245
University Education 28 299 507 28 299 507 - 26 229 270
Vocational and Continuing 
Education and Training 5 686 806 5 686 806 - 5 048 122
Skills Development 100 031 100 031 - 93 333
Total 34 333 900 34 333 900 - 31 586 121

2013/14 2012/13
Note

2. Statutory Appropriation
Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs) 9 673 818 9 355 595
National Skills Fund 2 416 368 2 338 898
Total 12 090 186 11 694 493

Actual statutory appropriation received 12 090 186 11 694 493

3. Departmental Revenue
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 3.1 6 071 4 965
Interest, dividends and rent on land 3.2 3 374 3 458

3.3 2 435 2 410
Transfer received 3.4 - 80
Total revenue collected 11 880 10 913
Departmental revenue collected 11 880 10 913

3.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital 
assets

3

Sales of goods and services produced by the 
department 6 042 4 949

Sales by market establishment 423 457
Administrative fees 4 294 3 915
Other sales 1 325 577

goods 29 16
Total 6 071 4 965

3.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land 3
Interest 3 374 3 458
Total 3 374 3 458
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2013/14 2012/13

Note R’000 R’000

3.3 3
Other receipts including recoverable revenue 2 435 2 410
Total 2 435 2 410

3.4 Transfers received 3
International Organisations - 20
Public corporations and private enterprises - 60
Total - 80

4. Aid Assistance
4.1 Aid assistance received in cash from RDP

Foreign
Opening Balance - -
Revenue 5 433 883
Expenditure (2 302) (883)

Current (1 155) -
Transfers (1 147) (883)

Closing Balance 3 131 -

4.2 Total
Opening Balance - -
Revenue 5 433 883
Expenditure (2 302) (883)

Current (1 155) -
Transfers (1 147) (883)

Closing Balance 3 131 -

4.3 Analysis of balance
Aid assistance repayable 3 131 -

RDP 3 131 -
Closing balance 3 131 -

5. Compensation of employees
5.1

Basic salary 217 221 189 936
5 495 2 624

Service based 364 315
Compensative/circumstantial 82 361 84 910
Periodic payments 921 119

55 535 49 554
Total 361 897 327 458
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2013/14 2012/13

Note R’000 R’000

5.2 Social contributions
Employer contributions
Pension 25 444 22 535
Medical 11 048 10 390
Bargaining council 60 50

1 1
Total 36 553 32 976

Total compensation of employees 398 450 360 434

Average number of employees 1 031 906

6. Goods and services
Administrative fees 245 142
Advertising 2 267 4 520
Minor assets 6.1 592 1 561
Bursaries (employees) 349 542
Catering 6 286 5 471
Communication 6 837 6 329
Computer services 6.2 25 772 23 400
Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 6.3 9 950 8 564
Entertainment 92 50
Audit cost – external 6.4 7 594 6 317
Fleet services 878 1 516
Inventory 6.5 2 524 2 893
Consumables 6.6 19 424 20 597
Operating leases 2 653 2 465
Property payments 6.7 34 214 21 199
Rental and hiring 84 44
Transport provided as part of the departmental activities 297 955
Travel and subsistence 6.8 46 314 39 855
Venues and facilities 2 844 1 685
Training and staff development 987 1 751
Other operating expenditure 6.9 7 931 7 328
Total 178 134 157 184

6.1 Minor assets 6
Tangible assets 587 1 561

Machinery and equipment 587 1 561
Intangible assets 5 -

Total 592 1 561

6.2 Computer services 6
SITA computer services 22 624 20 933
External computer service providers 3 148 2 467
Total 25 772 23 400
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2013/14 2012/13

Note R’000 R’000

6.3 Consultants, contractors and agency/ 
outsourced services

6

Business and advisory services 1 316 1 891
Laboratory services - 49
Legal costs 991 1 440
Contractors 859 872
Agency and support/outsourced services 6 784 4 312
Total 9 950 8 564

6.4 Audit cost – external 6
Regularity audits  5 486 5 613
Performance audits 157 104
Computer audits 1 951 600
Total 7 594 6 317

6.5 Inventory 6
Clothing material and accessories 2 -
Food and food supplies 425 472
Fuel, oil and gas 57 60
Materials and supplies 2 039 2 355
Medical supplies 1 6
Total 2 524 2 893

6.6 Consumables 6
Consumables supplies 1 400 1 309
Uniform and clothing 81 -
Household supplies 876 -
Building material and supplies 178 -
Communication accessories 16 -
IT consumables 101 -
Other consumables 148 1 309

18 024 19 288
Total 19 424 20 597

6.7 Property payments 6
Property management fees  33 163 19 896
Maintenance and repairs 247 264
Other 804 1 039
Total 34 214 21 199

6.8 Travel and subsistence 6
Local  39 667 33 644
Foreign 6 647 6 211
Total 46 314 39 855
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2013/14 2012/13

Note R’000 R’000

6.9 Other operating expenditure
Professional bodies, membership and subscription 
fees

6 195 10

Resettlement costs 1 381 2 948
Other 6 355 4 370
Total 7 931 7 328

7.
7.1 - 33

Total - 33

7.1 7

Missing Photocopy Machine - Olivetti - 33
Total - 33

- 33

8. Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities 32   2 454 188 4 844 607
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1A  17 972 736 16 996 473
Higher education institutions Annex 1B 22 388 767 20 902 779
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1C 2 927 2 639

Annex 1D 3 020 189 5 000
Households Annex 1E 1 705 2 289
Total 45 840 512 42 753 787

32 012 18 976
An amount of R32.012 million was surrendered by the provincial education departments for Limpopo 
(R802 000), North West (R584 000), Eastern Cape (R13.693 million), Free State (R15.540 million), 
Northern Cape (R1.393 million).

9. Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 5 032 5 455

Machinery and equipment 29 5 032 5 455

Intangible assets 27 -
30 27 -

Total 5 059 5 455
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9.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2013/14

Voted funds
Aid 

assistance Total

Tangible assets  5 032 - 5 032
Machinery and equipment 5 032 - 5 032

Intangible assets 27 - 27
27 - 27

Total 5 059 - 5 059

9.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2012/13

Voted funds
Aid 

assistance Total

Tangible assets 5 455 - 5 455
Machinery and equipment 5 455 - 5 455

Total 5 455 - 5 455

2013/14 2012/13
Note

10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash receipts 5 48
Cash on hand 23 23

6 139 8 741
Total 6 167 8 812

11. Prepayments and advances
Travel and subsistence 62 37
Prepayments 4 084 153
Advances paid 9 068 8 064
Total 13 214 8 254

11.1 Advances paid
National departments Annex 5A 9 068 8 064

Total 9 068 8 064

2013/14 2012/13

Less than 
one year

One to 
three 
years

Older 
than three 

years Total Total
Note

12. Receivables
Claims recoverable 12.1

Annex 3 160 875 400 51 656 212 931 139 928
Recoverable expenditure 12.2 437 382 59 878 493
Staff debt 12.3 458 236 5 699 413
Other debtors 12.4 - 393 41 434 363
Total 161 770 1 411 51 761 214 942 141 197
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2013/14 2012/13
Note

12.1 Claims recoverable 12
National departments 4 240 773
Provincial departments 51 560 51 460
Public entities 156 896 87 605
Private enterprises 235 90
Total 212 931 139 928

The increase in claims recoverable is due mainly to claims in respect of March 2014 for services 
rendered to the National Skills Fund and for the payments in respect of the NSF growth projects 
for the 2013/14 nancial year and outstanding balances of the Gauteng Education Department 
that were taken over from the former Department of Education. Claims in respect of March 2014 
payments were only issued in April 2014.

12.2
Dishonoured cheques 14 24
Salaries 179 39

505 304
Miscellaneous 180 126
Total 878 493 

12.3 Staff debt 12
Motor accidents 240 43
Other 60 20
Pension Fund 192 176
Salary overpayment 207 174
Total 699 413

12.4 Other debtors 12
Debt taken over from the Department of 
Education 35 35
Pension recoverable 15 15
Tax debt - 17
Other debtors 384 296
Total 434 363

12.5 Impairment of receivables 12
Estimate of impairment of receivables 51 458 -
Total 51 458 -
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2013/14 2012/13

Note R’000 R’000

13. Loans
Universities and technikons 24 247 26 376
Total 24 247 26 376

Analysis of balance 
Opening balance 26 376 28 431
Repayments (2 129) (2 055)
Closing balance 24 247 26 376

Cape Peninsula University of Technology 3 281 3 653
Durban Institute of Technology 6 654 7 107
Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University 215 281

6 739 7 325
Vaal University of Technology 2 506 2 721
University of Johannesburg 4 344 4 693
University of Stellenbosch 508 596

24 247 26 376

Current portion of loans 2 291 2 129

14. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance 3 721 87 652
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 1 931 3 751
Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1 - (30)
Paid during the year (3 721) (87 652)
Closing balance 1 931 3 721

15. Departmental revenue and NRF receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue 
Fund
Opening balance 557 721
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 11 880 10 913
Paid during the year (12 241) (11 077)
Closing balance 196 557

16.
Consolidated Paymaster-General Account 163 271 153 230
Total 163 271 153 230

The bank overdraft is due mainly to claims in respect of March 2014 for services rendered to the National 
Skills Fund and for the payments in respect of the NSF growth projects for the 2013/14 nancial year 
and outstanding balances of the Gauteng Education Department that were taken over from the former 
Department of Education. Claims in respect of March 2014 payments were only issued in April 2014.

17. Payables - current
Advances received 17.1 64 852 -
Clearing accounts 17.2 312 256
Other payables 17.3 248 112
Total 65 412 368
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2013/14 2012/13

Note R’000 R’000

17.1 Advances received 17
Public entities 64 852 -
Total 64 852 -

17.2 Clearing accounts 17
Tax RSA 312 256
Total 312 256

17.3 Other payables 17
128 97

Other 18 15
102 -

Total 248 112

18.

Performance
16 942 14 664

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed 
operating activities

(24 564) (182 262)

(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current (73 745) (80 183)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances (4 960) (6 010)
Increase/(decrease) in payables – current 65 044 (2 765)
Expenditure on capital assets 5 059 5 455
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (15 962) (98 729)
Voted funds not requested/not received - (30)

(7 622) (167 598)

19.
purposes
Consolidated Paymaster-General Account (163 271) (153 230)
Cash receipts 5 48
Cash on hand 23 23

6 139 8 741
Total (157 104) (144 418)

20. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
20.1 Contingent liabilities

Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 2A 70 267
Other guarantees Annex 2A 2 557 9 362
Claims against the department Annex 2B 13 830 11 800
Total 16 457 21 429

There is uncertainties relating to the amount of the out ow in respect of claims against the 
Department for the cases of ital vs ista University (R4 million) and Motaung vs the Department 
of Higher Education and Training (R1 million) as both these cases is dormant and it might not 
realise.
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2013/14 2012/13

Note R’000 R’000

21. Commitments
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 19 991 10 762

19 991 10 762
Capital expenditure (including transfers)
Approved and contracted 123 483

123 483
Total Commitments 20 114 11 245

Commitments to the amount of R1.369 million is longer than a year.

2013/14 2012/13
22. Accruals

30 days 30+ days Total Total

Goods and services 18 676 7 932 26 608 7 482
Capital assets 339 - 339 73
Other - 18 991 18 991 7 824
Total 19 015 26 923 45 938 15 379

Note 2013/14 2012/13

Listed by programme level
Programme 1: Administration 16 972 951
Programme 2: Human Resource Development, Planning and 
Monitoring Coordination

1 797 233

Programme 3: University Education 1 099 317
Programme 4: Vocational and Continuing Education and Training 25 277 13 494
Programme 5: Skills Development 793 384
Total 45 938 15 379

Reasons for material accruals:
Claims in respect of the Rennies account, examiners and moderators and Public Works were not received 
before closure of nancial year.

23.
Leave entitlement 5 893 10 211
Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 8 063 6 976

5 902 6 682
Capped leave commitments 11 382 11 523
Other 348 429
Total 31 588 35 821

23.1 Negative leave balances
Differences in the reporting cycle for leave 1 914 105 

1 914 105 

The increase in the negative leave balance is due to the fact that leave relating to the closure of the 
Department in December 2014 was already captured on the PERSAL system.
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24. Lease commitments
24.1 Operating leases expenditure

2013/14 Buildings 
and other 

structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total

Not later than 1 year 36 906 996 37 902
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 794 794
Total lease commitments 36 906 1 790 38 696

2012/13 Buildings 
and other 

structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total

Not later than 1 year 18 785 9 028 27 813
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 492 492
Total lease commitments 18 785 9 520 28 305

The lease agreement with the Department of Public Works is currently on a month to month basis and is 
calculated based on the current actual monthly rental payments to the Department of Public Works.

2013/14 2012/13
25. Irregular expenditure Note

25.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance 1 295 558
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year - (119)
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 50 856

1 345 1 295

Current year 50 856
Prior years 1 295 439
Total 1 345 1 295

2013/14
25.2 Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Incident
proceedings

splitting of transactions.

completed and disciplinary actions 
have been taken.

50
50
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26. Related party transactions
List related party transactions
Ministerial Portfolio Departmental 

Schedule
Public Entity

Higher Education and Training 3A Council on Higher Education and Training
3A National Student Financial Aid Scheme
3A
3A Quality Council for Trades and Occupations
3A National Skills Fund
3A Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs):

Agriculture Sector Education and Training Authority
Banking Sector Education and Training Authority
Construction Sector Education and Training Authority
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training 
Authority
Education, Training and Development Practices SETA
Financial and Accounting Services SETA
Food and Beverages Manufacturing Industry
Health and Welfare Sector Education and Training 
Authority
Chemical Industries Education and Training Authority
Transport Education and Training Authority
Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority
Insurance Sector Education and Training Authority
Media,Information and Communication Technologies 
SETA
Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services SETA

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training 
Authority
Services Sector Education and Training Authority
Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector 
Education and Training Authority
Wholesale and Retail Sector Education and Training 
Authority
Local Government Sector Education and Training 
Authority
Fibre Processing and Manufacturing SETA
Government Departments and other entities in the 
same sphere of government
All government departments and public entities in the 
same sphere of government are related parties to the 
Department of Higher Education and Training

27. Key management personnel No. of 
Individuals

2 3 993 3 690

Level 15 to 16 10 12 236 11 107
26 22 917 19 977

Total 39 146 34 774

Minister: 2013/14: R2.107 million; 2012/13: R1.953 million.
Deputy Minister: 2013/14: R1.735 million; 2012/13: R1.609 million.
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2013/14
28. Non-adjusting events after reporting date R‘000

10 960
Total 10 960

29. Movable Tangible Capital Assets
MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Opening 
balance

Current 
year ad-

justments 
to prior 

year  
balances Additions Disposals

Closing 
balance

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 33 443 (109) 5 786 723 38 397
Transport assets 4 950 - 773 - 5 723
Computer equipment 17 930 (1) 3 565 689 20 805

9 300 (77) 612 14 9 821
Other machinery and equipment 1 263 (31) 836 20 2 048

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 33 443 (109) 5 786 723 38 397

Additions
29.1 ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Cash Non-cash

(Capital 

progress 
current 

costs and 

lease 
payments)

Received 
current, 
not paid 

(Paid 
current 

year, 
received 

prior year) Total

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 5 032 - - 754 5 786
Transport assets 773 - - - 773
Computer equipment 3 014 - - 551 3 565

445 - - 167 612
Other machinery and equipment 800 - - 36 836

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 5 032 - - 754 5 786
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Disposals
29.2 DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Sold for 
cash

Transfer 
out or 

destroyed 
or 

scrapped
Total 

disposals

Cash 
received 

Actual

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT - 723 723 -
Computer equipment - 689 689 -

- 14 14 -
Other machinery and equipment - 20 20 -

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS - 723 723 -

Movement for 2012/13
29.3 MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Opening 
balance

Current year 
adjustments 
to prior year 

balances Additions Disposals
Closing 
balance

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 29 615 (332) 5 349 1 189 33 443
Transport assets 4 506 - 484 40 4 950
Computer equipment 15 566 7 3 440 1 083 17 930

8 481 (52) 914 43 9 300
Other machinery and equipment 1 062 (287) 511 23 1 263

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 29 615 (332) 5 349 1 189 33 443

Minor assets
29.4 MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED  

31 MARCH 2014

Intangible 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total

Opening balance 65 5 994 6 059
Additions 9 632 641
Disposals - 161 161
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 74 6 465 6 539

Intangible 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Number of R1 minor assets 1 19 988 19 989
Number of minor assets at cost 27 3 180 3 207
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 28 23 168 23 196
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Minor assets
MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Intangible 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total

Opening balance 65 5 108 5 173
- 55 55

Additions - 992 992
Disposals - 161 161
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 65 5 994 6 059

Intangible 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Number of R1 minor assets 1 18 688 18 689
Number of minor assets at cost 25 3 029 3 054
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 26 21 717 21 743

29.5 MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Machinery 

and 
equipment Total

161 161
Total 161 161

Intangible Capital Assets
30. MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 MARCH 2014

Opening 
balance

Current year 
adjustments 
to prior year 

balances Additions Disposals
Closing 
balance

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 665 - 27 - 692
PATENTS, LICENCES, 
COPYRIGHT, BRAND NAMES, 
TRADEMARKS 217 (79) - - 138
TOTAL INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 882 (79) 27 - 830

The current year adjustment to prior year balances in respect of Intangible Capital assets is as a result of 
communication hardware to the amount of R78 793.00 that was transferred to the Department of Basic 
Education.
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Additions
30.1 ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 MARCH 2014

Cash Non-cash

(Development 

progress 
current 
costs)

Received 
current, 
not paid 

(Paid 
current 

year, 
received 

prior year) Total

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 27 - - - 27
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO 
INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 27 - - - 27

Movement for 2012/13
30.2 MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 MARCH 2013
Opening 
balance Additions Disposals

Closing 
balance

SOFTWARE 665 - - 665
PATENTS, LICENCES, COPYRIGHT, 
BRAND NAMES, TRADEMARKS 217 - - 217
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 882 - - 882

31. Transfer of Functions
Outstanding balances of the Department of Education
Since the Department of Education is still listed in Schedule 1 of the Public Service Act, it is not yet 
abolished. Funds are still paid into the account of the former Department of Education and ongoing 
clearing of accounts are done on this account. An amount of R5 081.35 was not cleared as at the end of 
March 2014. Separate nancial statements have been prepared for the former Department of Education.
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DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Department of Education
REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

due to funds still been paid into the PMG account of this Department and these balances could not be cleared or 

as at the end of March 2014. This balance amounts to R5 081.35 as at the end of March 2014.

Since the Department of Education is still listed in Schedule 1 of the Public Service Act, it is not yet abolished. 

Important policy decisions and strategic issues

None.

during the year

None.

Spending trends

None.

Virement

None.

2. Services rendered by the Department
2.1 Services rendered

None.

2.2 Tariff policy

None.

2.3 Free services

None.

2.4 Inventories

None.

3. Capacity constraints

None.

4. Utilisation of donor funds

None.

5. Public entities 

None.
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Department of Education
REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

6.1 Higher education institutions (HEIs)

None.

6.2 Other transfers

None.

6.3 Conditional grants to provincial education departments

None.

7. Public private partnerships (PPP)

None.

8. Corporate governance arrangements

None.

8.2 Internal Audit Unit

None.

8.3 The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Department of Higher Education and Training is also responsible for the activities of 
the Department of Education.

None. 

8.5 Implementation of a code of conduct

None.

8.6 Safety, health and environmental issues facing the Department

None.

8.7 Other governance structures

None.

9. Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued

None.

None. The Department closed on 31 March 2010 as part of the restructuring process of Government.

11. Asset management

None.

12. Events after the reporting date

None.
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Department of Education
REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

13. Performance information

None.

14. Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) resolutions

None.

None.

16. Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury

None.

17. Other

None.

18. Approval

Mr TW Tredoux

Date: 30 May 2014
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Department of Education
NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT

None.
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Department of Education
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE
Departmental revenue - -
Aid assistance - -

TOTAL REVENUE - -

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees - -
Goods and services - -
Aid assistance - -
Total current expenditure - -

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies - -
Aid assistance - -
Total transfers and subsidies - -

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible capital assets - -

- -
Total expenditure for capital assets - -

- -

TOTAL EXPENDITURE - -

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR - -

Reconciliation of Net Surplus for the year
Voted Funds - -
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts - -
Aid assistance - -
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR - -

2013/14 2012/13

Note
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

as at 31 March 2014

Department of Education
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current Assets 5 5
Prepayments and advances - -
Receivables 1 5 5
Loans - -
Aid assistance receivable - -

Non-Current Assets - -
Loans - -

TOTAL ASSETS 5 5

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 5 5
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund - -
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to 
the Revenue Fund - -
Bank overdraft 2 2 2
Payables 3 3 3
Aid assistance unutilised - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 5

NET ASSETS - -

Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve - -
Recoverable revenue - -

TOTAL - -

2013/14 2012/13

Note
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Department of Education
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts - -
Departmental revenue received - -
Aid assistance received - -

- 20
Surrendered to Revenue Fund - -
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor - -
Current payments - -

- -
Transfers and subsidies paid - -

4 - 20

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase)/ decrease in loans - -

- -

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (decrease) in net assets - -

- -

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 20

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (2)  (22)    

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 5 (2) (2)

2013/14 2012/13

Note
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DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND TRAINING
VOTE 17

for the year ended 31 March 2014

Department of Education
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Statements. These are based on the best information available at the time of preparation. Where 
appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial 

(as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual 
Division of Revenue Act.

1. Basis of preparation

2. Going concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3. Presentation currency

currency of the Department.

4. Rounding

5. Foreign currency translations

exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

7. Revenue
7.1 Appropriated funds

fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date the appropriation 

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting   date 
is recognised as a payable / receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.

7.2 Departmental revenue

Statement of Financial Position.
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7.3 Accrued Departmental revenue

Accruals in respect of Departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the  

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from 
collecting agents.

8. Expenditure
8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1 Salaries and wages

8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the Department in respect of current employees are recognised in the   
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

households in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

8.2 Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) 

as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.

8.3 Accrued expenditure payable

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.

8.4 Leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the      
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the      
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.
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cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

9. Aid Assistance
9.1 Aid assistance received

In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the annexure to the Financial Statements on the date of receipt and 
is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are 
required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the Statement of Financial Position.

9.2 Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment. Aid 
assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the Statement 
of Financial Position.

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11. Prepayments and advances

receives or disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

12. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus accrued interest, 

expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements.

14. Payables

Loans and payables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.
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15. Capital Assets
15.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost.  

Immovable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at 
the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined accurately, the immovable capital 

the fair value is used.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.

impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital 

15.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost. Movable    
capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of 
acquisition.

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined accurately, the movable capital assets 

at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital 

15.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost. Intangible assets 
acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined accurately, the intangible capital assets are 

at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.
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Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital 

16. Provisions and Contingents
16.1 Provisions

obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best 
estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

16.2 Contingent liabilities

16.3 Contingent assets

16.4 Commitments

arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the 

17. Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position until such time as the 
expenditure is either:

received; or

appropriation in the Statement of Financial Performance; or

transferred to receivables for recovery.

resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.
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19. Irregular expenditure

recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, 

transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are 

20. Changes in accounting estimates

None.

21. Prior period errors

None.

22. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date

None.

23. Agent-Principal arrangements

None.
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2013/14 2012/13

Less than 
one year

One to 
three 
years

Older 
than three 

years Total Total

Note
1. Receivables

Claims recoverable Annex 3 - - - - -
Recoverable expenditure 5 - - 5 5
Total 5 - - 5 5

2013/14 2012/13

Note
1.1

Miscellaneous 5 5
Total 5 5

2.
Consolidated Paymaster-General Account 2 2
Total 2 2

3. Payables - current
Clearing accounts 3 3
Total 3 3

9.1 Clearing accounts
Other 3 3
Total 3 3

4.

Performance - -
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating 
activities - 20
(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current - 17
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances - -
Increase/(decrease) in payables – current - 3
Surrenders to Revenue Fund - -

- 20

5. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash 

Consolidated Paymaster-General account (2) (2)
Total (2) (2)
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